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Financial Highlights

E SRS

Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to

announce the following financial highlights:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

BELEBREMERAT(AAR]) REKE QR
(R AREDRREM T BRHE

2011 2010 Change
—=—— —E-F B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | AR®TT
Revenue Wz 3,164,056 | 2,116,871 49.5%
Gross profit el 653,745 525,617 24.4%
Profit before tax A 328,266 299,720 9.5%
Profit attributable to owners RARER AEEFE 283,620 257,510 10.1%
of the Company
Basic earnings per share, in RMB ~ ERXEARZF|(ARET) 0.21 0.25 (16.0%)
Proposed final dividend per share  E:# SR AR S GB1L) 1.6 - -
in HK cents
Revenue Gross profit Profit before tax
e EF AT & A
3,500,000 - 800,000 350,000 -
700,000
3,000,000 |~ - 300,000 |~
600,000
2,500,000 |~ 500,000 - 250,000 |~
400,000
2,000,000 |~ - 200,000 |~
300,000
1,500,000 - - 150,000 -~
200,000
1,000,000 100,000 100,000
e 2010 2011 M. 2010 2011 M. 2010 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB283.6 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.21 (the year ended
31 December 2010: RMBO0.25), the calculation of such
basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of shares of 1,333,334,000
(2010: 1,041,666,750) in issue during the year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
proposed a final dividend of 1.6 HK cents per share for the
year, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval of the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 30
May 2012 (the “AGM”) and full year dividend amounted to
4.9 HK cents per share.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 28 May 2012 to 30 May 2012 (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to
attend the AGM, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending the AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 25 May 2012.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 6 June 2012 to 8 June 2012 (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitiement to the
proposed final dividend, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. The payment of
the proposed final dividend shall be subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the AGM. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, Shareholders should deliver
share certificates together with transfer documents to the
Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Words from the Chairman:

I, on behalf of Leoch International Technology Limited, am
pleased to present the Group’s annual results report for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2011 (the “Period”) to
be reviewed by shareholders.

During the Period, the Group achieved an enhancement of
overall earnings on continuous sales growths, as driven by
steady growth of market demands for lead-acid batteries of
the Group and its expanding production and sale capacities.
I, on behalf of Leoch International, am pleased to present the
annual results for the twelve months ended 31 December
2011. During the Period, The Group recorded revenue of
RMB3,164.1 million, representing an increase of 49.5% from
2010. The profit attributable to the Group’s equity holders
was RMB283.6 million, representing an increase of 10.1%
from 2010.

6 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011
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Market Opportunities and Challenges

The lead-acid battery industry embraced major opportunities
and challenges in 2011. On the one hand, lead-acid
batteries, as components of high-end devices, witnessed
surging demands as the PRC was shifting from the low-
end labour-intensive economy towards urbanisation and
industrial automation under governmental policies. On the
other hand, the more stringent industry regulations by the
PRC government during the Period led to suspension or
shutdown of certain manufacturers which were unable
to meet regulatory requirements or survive the increased
operating costs, resulting in a significant shrink of lead-
acid battery capacity of the industry in contrast with the
increasing and high demand for lead-acid batteries.

Constantly increasing demands from domestic market

China has been accelerating its paces into industrial society
since the 1980s along with rapid economic growths.
Now it has entered into a new transformation stage to
upgrade economic structure from low-end manufacturing to
commercialisation and industrial automation, characterised
by the expanding consumer demands and in turn the
increasing demands for telecommunication, computer,
electronic products and transportation vehicles in the PRC. In
lockstep with such high-end devices, the overall market size

Chairman’s Statement
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of lead-acid batteries, being their necessary components,
has been rapidly expanding on the back of the increasing
demands. As such, the Group will proactively strengthen
market development to further explore opportunities in the
lead-acid battery market.

Despite the dominance by manufacturers in developed
countries, the lead-acid battery market in the PRC is rapidly
fledging as fuelled by the domestic industrial upgrade
and urbanisation progresses. Capturing the opportunities
from overseas industrial transfer, Chinese enterprises
have continued and are believed to further expand the
overseas market shares of their lead-acid battery products.
Accordingly, the Group recorded increasing sales to the
European and American markets in 2011. The Group will
take initiatives to improve cooperation with European and
American enterprises to tap on opportunities in these
markets.

Renewable energy, including solar energy and wind energy,
represents the future trend of energy utilisation and hence
has been emphasised by governments around the world,
and the PRC government has also stepped up its effort
to support the industry. As lead-acid battery is one of the
major components of offline solar energy and wind energy
systems, the development and promotion of renewable
energy provides a sound opportunity for the Group’s
growth.

During the Period, the Group operated more than 50 sale
offices in the United States, Europe, Southeast Asia and
China, two R&D centres and five production bases, with
total annual capacity of approximately 9.6 million KVAh. The
Group completed construction of new plants in 2011. The
factory occupying land area increased to 870,000 square
metres from 240,000 square metres. Meanwhile, equipment
installation has commenced during the Period and part of

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011
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the equipment has entered into testing stage. It is expected
that equipment installation in certain new plants will be
completed early in 2012. The commissioning of new plants
allows the Group to exceed certain major international lead-
acid battery enterprises in Europe and America in terms of
production and sale capacity and reach a globally leading
level.

The Group grasped opportunities from domestic industrial
upgrade and overseas industrial transfer to strengthen its
leading position and expand its market share. Leveraging on
its sales network comprising over 500 sales and after-sales
personnel in more than 50 sale offices in the United States,
Europe, Southeast Asia and China and the strong market
demands, the Group continued the partnership with high-
end users such as BMW and Mattel. In addition, the Group
successfully obtained certification from Haojue Holdings Ltd.,
the largest motorcycle manufacturer in China, in July 2011
and formally became one of its qualified suppliers to supply
SLI batteries for motorcycles of the two brands under Haojue
Holdings Ltd.: SUZUKI and Haojue. The Group also became
a qualified supplier of lead-acid batteries for PEP BOYS in the
United States to supply lead-acid batteries to chain stores
and service points under PEP BOYS. The recognition from
above-mentioned high-end clients demonstrates the clients’
satisfaction with good and reliable quality of the Group’s
products and further improves the influence and awareness
of the Group’s products in battery markets, which is positive
for the Group’s further expansion of future market share in
battery markets all over the world including China.

Looking forward to the future, in view of the increasing
demands for high-end devices arising from modernisation
paces of the PRC and the developing countries worldwide
including India and Brazil, the management is full of
confidence in the market prospects of lead-acid batteries,
being one of necessary components of such devices. The
Group will continue its commitment to enhancing production
and sale capacities as well as R&D and service levels,
catering for customer needs and consolidating its competitive
advantages, aiming to build itself as a leading enterprise of
lead-acid battery industry in the world and create value for
shareholders and the society.
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To build itself into a first-class sales and technology oriented
enterprise, the Group will bring its existing sales network,
R&D centres and production bases into full play to expand
production and sale capacities of lead-acid batteries.
Meanwhile, the Group will seek to explore new sales network,
R&D centres and production bases at home and abroad,
allowing itself to provide customers with integrated services
covering design, production, sales and after-sales in a global
landscape. Furthermore, the Group will continue to increase
investments in research and development, fortify its research
and development team and expand cooperation with the
global top-notched research and development institutions
and industry experts, so as to build up a high-calibre and
aggressive research team with cutting edges in the battery
industry.

The rapid growth of the Group is attributable to its loyal
and hardworking employees who devote themselves to
corporate development. Taking this opportunity, |, hereby,
on behalf of the Board of Directors, express my deepest
gratitude to the contributions of all the Group’s employees
and to the long-term support and trust by shareholders
and business partners. The Group is full of confidence to
continuously make contributions to shareholders and the
society.

Dong Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2012

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011

RTERETERER —ROHERAIFED
¥ AEBEMAHEETHEHEINER
DNBREHERSE - BAP O REEEN - [
R B SN R TV SHE 4948 - BRI D R A
iy EARBBRNEERSMWATPIRHR
AR HEMRERNH -RBLERYE  AKEE
SMAREMENRA - TEMIHEEE - A
HERBRMERBEREZATERINAIE HFR2
R—mEEN  BENE - S|BERHRN
R BB o

BIERNAE  ABRR—UH/EXERE N
WA BB T - it e - RAERRE
SHEXHMIEINERRRHE - RO
B AL IR B RN R EIARA ST AEAE - &
SEBELREMFER/BRR - AHSMLER

B
E

EFa& —E——F€=A=-+/)/\H



DIN 58827

e ——— ] [t

The Group is a leading lead-acid battery enterprise in the PRC
primarily engaged in manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries. The Group sells over 2,000 models of
lead-acid battery products, ranging in capacity from 0.251
Ah to 4,055 Ah. Among the PRC battery manufacturers,
the Group offers one of the broadest lines of lead-acid
batteries. Despite the impact on world economy from the
earthquake in Japan and the European debt crisis, the Group
was well positioned in the accelerating urbanisation and
industrial automation progresses in the PRC and obtained
increasing orders from abroad, and continued to witness
a fast growth in demand for lead-acid batteries in 2011,
leading to increasing sales throughout the PRC, the United
States, the European Union and other Asian regions. As
such, the Group suffered no impact from macro economy
on demand for its lead-acid batteries.
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Lead-acid batteries are classified into three market
segments, namely reserve power batteries, SLI batteries
and motive power batteries. Leveraging on its leading market
position, the Group continues to enhance its production
and sale capabilities of all types of lead-acid batteries.
Meanwhile, environmental authorities in China re-examined
production facilities of lead-acid battery plants during the
year and strengthened regulation on the lead-acid battery
manufacturing industry which resulted in further industry
consolidation and intensified the shortage in supply of lead-
acid batteries. By virtue of its leading position in the market,
the Group achieved rapidly increasing sales of lead-acid
batteries during the year, thereby taking the lead in all three
domestic market segments. Details of business operations
of the Group in the three lead-acid battery segments, namely
reserve power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power
batteries, are as follows:

Reserve power battery products are further classified into
four major application areas, namely uninterrupted power
supply system (“UPS”), telecommmunications, other consumer
products and renewable energy. Reserve power batteries
are the major source of the Group’s revenue. The Group’s
sales of reserve power batteries during the year ended
31 December 2011 amounted to RMB2,578.5 million,
representing a significant growth of 37.1%. The Group’s sales
in UPS segment increased remarkably, mainly attributable to
the orders obtained which were previously placed to foreign
battery manufacturers. Currently, the Group supplies its
products to the major worldwide UPS manufacturers. The
market share of the Group in telecommunications segment
continued to expand, resulting in a considerable growth for
the Group in absence of significant investment growth of
telecommunications operators. The sales in other consumer
products segment continued to grow during the Period,
mainly attributable to the orders secured by the Group
from domestic and overseas electronic consumer product
manufacturers. The Group’s sales in renewable energy
batteries also increased significantly due to the extensive
application of new energy sources such as solar and wind
power generation worldwide. The Group predicts this trend
will continue.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SLI batteries:

SLI batteries are used mainly in starting automobiles and
motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI batteries during
the Period amounted to RMB375.2 million, representing a
substantial growth of 1565.7%. Thanks to the recognition of
quality and value of the Group’s products, domestic and
foreign manufacturers and distributors of automobiles and
motorcycles transferred considerable orders to the Group.
During the Period, the Group became the major supplier of
SLI batteries for motorcycles in the PRC, and recorded a
significant growth in sales of SLI batteries for automobiles.
The Group predicts this trend will continue.

Motive power batteries:

Motive power batteries are mainly used in providing power
for electric vehicles such as forklifts, golf cars and electric
bicycles. The Group’s sales of motive power batteries during
the Period amounted to RMB178.0 million, representing a
substantial growth of 570.6%. The Group commenced bulk
production of motive power batteries in 2010. The demand
for motive power batteries especially in application of forklifts,
golf cars and electric bicycles increased significantly, as
driven by the increasing investment in green energy by
countries worldwide. The Group predicts this trend will
continue.
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The Group has established a sales network covering over
100 countries and regions across the world to distribute
its batteries. Under the PRC sales headquarter located in
Beijing, the Group established 34 sales centres nationwide.
The Group’s international sales headquarter is located in
Shenzhen, supported by 6 international sales and operation
centres in the United States, the European Union and
Singapore. Currently, the Group has over 500 sales and
after-sales employees and maintains business relations with
distributors in 16 other countries. The Group will continue
expanding its sales teams and network to support sales,
distribution, and after-sales services for its reserve power
batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries.

The Group is a leader in developing lead-acid battery
technologies in China. The Group’s battery research and
development team consists of more than 400 researchers and
technicians, and works closely with domestic and international
battery experts and research institutions to develop new
technologies. To support its research and development effort,
the Group has established two leading research centres with
advanced equipment to support its research and development
forces. Currently, the Group holds 172 patents and other 225
proprietary technologies are in patent applications. The Group
has basically grasped and applied most of lead-acid battery
technologies in the world. The Group’s strong research and
development capabilities enable it to produce a broad range
of battery products employing most of the key lead-acid
battery technologies. Currently, the Group has developed
more than 2,000 models of battery products of different types
employing various application technologies.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group operated five wholly-
owned production bases in the PRC and one joint venture
production and operation base in Malaysia occupying a total
area of approximately 870,000 sg.m., of which 580,000
sg.m. were constructed after the Listing in November 2010.
Currently, the infrastructure of these newly built production
bases has been completed and production equipment is
being installed according to schedule. A portion of the
installation has been completed and has started trial
production. The Group’s annual production capacity has
increased to 9.6 million KVAh from 5.1 million KVAh at
the time of Listing. The number of the Group’s production
lines increased by 57 to 110 during the Period compared
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to 53 at the end of 2010. The Group will seek to build new
production and operation bases in order to further expand
its production and manufacturing capacity.

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts the major cost for the Group’s battery production.
According to Shanghai Metals Market, an information service
provider of non-ferrous metal market, lead prices were
stable during the year. Domestic average lead price slightly
increased to RMB16,328 per ton in 2011 from RMB16,108
per ton in 2010, representing an increase of approximately
1.4%. To cope with potential risks of fluctuations in lead price,
the Group adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw
materials price fluctuations to customers to hedge relevant
risks. The Group’s centralised purchase of raw materials
also enables it to trim down costs of raw materials through
favourable negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.

Shenzhen Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd. and Dongguan
Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd., two subsidiaries of the
Group engaged in assembly and production of lead-acid
batteries, suspended production for self-examination, and
Dongguan Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd. has duly
resumed production since 18 January 2012.

Batteries for power supply to equipment are necessary
components for most of high-tech equipment including UPS
in computer network data centres, automobiles, motorcycles,
telecommunication base stations, train, subway, solar and
wind power stations, substations, electric vehicles, elevators,
backup lights and medical equipment, and thus are one of
the necessities in modern society. The Group, therefore,
anticipates that the lead-acid battery market in China will
enjoy continuous growths as driven by domestic industry
upgrading and industry shift from overseas, urbanisation
and national income increase in China, consolidation of
domestic battery industry and more extensive application of
renewable energy supported by governments worldwide. In
the meantime, given its superior performance-to-price ratio
and reliable safety, the commercial value and application of
lead-acid battery are irreplaceable in the foreseeable future.
The Group predicts that lead-acid batteries will continue
to grow significantly in three segments, namely reserve
power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries.
To grasp these market opportunities, the Group has laid
out the following strategic plans for the three segments of
lead-acid batteries:
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Amid the industry upgrading in the PRC, consumer and high-
tech industries are taking over low-end industries, leading to
continuous demand expansions for reserve power batteries.
Given its increasing production and sale capacities, the
Group obtained numerous orders transferred from domestic
and overseas customers, thereby reinforcing its leading
position in the reserve power batteries market. The Company
believes that reserve power batteries will maintain the growth
momentum in all of four major application segments namely
UPS, telecommunication, other consumer products and
renewable energy. As the Group’s products have passed
assessments by a number of quality UPS manufacturers
in the PRC and overseas, it is expected that more orders
from quality customers will be secured which will in turn
generate substantial after-sales orders. The Company
will continue to provide quality products and services to
telecommunication battery customers, aiming to further
expand its market share in the telecommunication battery
market. Meanwhile, the Group as a supplier to major global
consumer battery producers is committed to catering for
their increasing demand as driven by the competitive strength
of consumer product batteries manufactured in the PRC.
Sales of renewable energy batteries will also significantly
grow due to more extensive application of solar, wind and
other the green energy. The Group will strive to expand its
share in such sectors to maintain its leading position in the
reserve power batteries market.

China is in the process of urbanisation. Urban population in
the PRC for the first time in history exceeded rural population
in 2011. The urbanisation progress is expected to step
up. The higher urbanisation rate increases the domestic
transportation demand. The demand for SLI batteries will
further escalate as China ranked first in vehicle production
and sales in the world in 2011 and continues to grow
by 2020. The Group has increased its investment in SLI
batteries, aiming to become one of the domestically leading
suppliers of SLI batteries for automobiles. It is expected that
SLI batteries will contribute to continuous growths of the
Group’s results, making it into one of the market leaders in
SLI batteries industry in the PRC.
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Motive power batteries have been highly valued and
promoted in various countries. China also strengthens its
support to the industry, and promotes extensive application
of motive power batteries in electric vehicles including
electric bicycles, low-speed electric car and forklifts. The
PRC government has included the promotion of green
energy vehicles into its national plan, which is to enhance
demand for motive power batteries. The Group will further
enhance its capacities in production and sales to provide
more competitive products, aiming to continuously satisfy
the increasing market demand.

The Group’s revenue increased by 49.5% from RMB2,116.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB3,164.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2011, mainly because
of an increase in sales volume of the Group’s products.

In terms of product types, revenue from reserve power
batteries increased from RMB1,881.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to RMB2,578.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011, representing an increase
of 37.1%. Revenue generated from SLI batteries increased
by 155.7% from RMB146.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 to RMB375.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2011. Revenue from motive power batteries
increased from RMB26.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 to RMB178.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2011, representing an increase of 570.6%. Details
of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2010 and 2011 by product types are set out below:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o P ki B S

Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in Mainland China, the United States, the European Union
and other Asian countries/regions. For the year ended 31
December 2011, the Group’s sales revenue in Mainland China
increased significantly by 76.8% from RMB878.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB1,552.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011, accounting for 49.0%
of total revenue (2010: 41.5%). The increase in the Group’s
sales in Mainland China increased the proportion of revenue
from the market from 41.5% to 49.0%, while the proportion
of revenue from the United States, the European Union
and other Asian countries/regions declined accordingly. The
following table sets forth details of the Group’s revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 based
on the geographic locations.
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regions EV S 486,044 15.4% 21.7% 399,417 18.9%
Other countries HiEHR 113,682 3.6% 31.9% 86,205 4.1%
Total = 3,164,056 100% 49.5% 2,116,871 100%

Cost of Sales THE AR

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 57.8% from
RMB1,591.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
to RMB2,510.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2011, mainly because of the increased sales volume.
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The Group’s gross profit increased by 24.4% from RMB525.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB653.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The overall
gross profit margin decreased from 24.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2010 to 20.7% for the year ended 31
December 2011. This was mainly because the fixed costs
of certain newly implemented production capacities which
were in trial operation have not been diluted by sales, and
no effect of scale could be utilised.

Other income and gains increased by 216.5% from RMB22.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB70.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2011, which was
primarily due to the increase in the incentives granted by
local governments for the achievements in operating and
research and development of the Group and the increase
in interest income.

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by 49.0%
from RMB76.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
to RMB114.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2011,
mainly because of the increase of freight and operation cost
related to the expanding sales.

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 50.7%
from RMB119.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2010 to RMB179.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2011, mainly because of the increase in operation cost to
strengthen the Group’s management.

The Group’s other operating expenses increased by 142.6%
from RMB30.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
to RMB73.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2011,
mainly because of the increased research and development
cost.
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The Group’s finance costs increased by 31.1% from
RMB22.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 to
RMB29.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2011,
mainly because of an increase in bank borrowings and
interests.

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
profit before tax of RMB328.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2011 compared to RMB299.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010, representing an increase
of 9.5%.

Income tax expense increased by 5.7% from RMB42.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB44.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2011, mainly because of
the increase in the Group’s profits.

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group’s profit for
the year increased by 10.1% from RMB257.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2010 to RMB283.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets of
RMB818.1 million (31 December 2010: RMB1,442.0 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade and bills receivables, cash and bank balances, and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The Group’s
current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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Inventories constituted one of the principal components of
the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2011, the
Group had inventories of RMB991.0 million (31 December
2010: RMB687.7 million). The increase in inventories was
primarily due to increased goods in progress as a result of
expanded production lines.

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily relate
to receivables for goods sold to its customers. As at 31
December 2011, the Group had trade and bills receivables of
RMB804.1 million (31 December 2010: RMB585.1 million).
The increase in trade and bills receivables was primarily due
to the increase in sales volume.

The Group principally makes prepayments and deposits
in connection with its purchase of raw materials, the large
majority of which relates to its purchase of new production
equipment. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of RMB159.4
million (31 December 2010: RMB175.0 million). The decrease
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables was primarily
because the Group made a prepayment for a substantial
purchase of equipments for the expansion of production
capacity in 2010, while part of such equipments had been
delivered in 2011, thus leading to a relatively smaller amount
of prepayments.

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials that the Group requires for its
production process. As at 31 December 2011, the Group
had trade and bills payables of RMB547.9 million (31
December 2010: RMB345.5 million).
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The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consist
of payments for its expenditures related to construction and
outfitting of its production facilities, payments it makes in
connection with transportation charges, advance payments
that some international customers make to it in advance of
its shipments, deferred government grants, and payroll and
benefits for its employees and staff. As at 31 December 2011,
the Group had other payables and accruals of RMB246.6
million (31 December 2010: RMB161.3 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
invested RMB777.6 million (31 December 2010: RMB197.7
million) in construction in progress and property, plant and
equipment for its new production facilities.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB1,071.6 million (31 December 2010: RMB416.6 million),
of which RMB740.9 million is interest-bearing and repayable
within one year and RMB330.7 million is interest-bearing
and repayable over one year. The Group’s borrowings are
denominated in RMB, HK dollars and U.S. dollars.

The increase in the Group’s bank borrowings was due to

the Group’s leveraging overseas facilities with lower interest
rates to purchase assets in Mainland China.

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010: nil).

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011

AEEHMENRIEREAFERFZOEINE
BERREEEERBEBROAY  REREAE
LR BLOBBREFMAEEBENONTES
A REBATHEL - LWREBME TN I EMGE
MeR—_TE——F+-_A=+—H AEHEH
thEMNRIEREFTERAARK24668ETL(ZE
—ZEF+ZA=+—H: AR¥161.38ET)

REBEZZ——F+ZA=+—HBFER &A%
B EARKEIT7T7T6EEL(ZE—2F+ A
=t+—H: ARB197.7HE L) R EE R
TEREIRERME - BB REE -

R_ZT——F+-A=+—8 AEELERTE
EAR®10716BBL(ZE—ZEF+H="+
—H: ARK416.6EEL) - HRARKET740.98
B A BRAR—FANER  AR¥330.788
TATER—FULEE AEENEEUAR
¥ BT REITLEHE -

AEEHRITEEZNERSAEENAEING
BN ERE L REAENEEZBE -

R-T——E+=-A=+—8 AEBELLRET
MEAXRABM -_T-—FTF+_A=+—8:
) o



The Group operates primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities are transacted
in RMB. For other companies outside of the PRC, their
principal activities are transacted in U.S. dollars. However,
as a result of the Group’s revenue being denominated in
RMB, the conversion of the revenue into foreign currencies
in connection with expense payments is subject to PRC
regulatory restrictions on currency conversion. The value of
the RMB against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may
fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, change
in PRC’s political and economic conditions. The Group’s
product sales adopted price mechanism, the currency
fluctuation is basically transferred to the customers, but
the Group’s foreign currency trade receivables may still be
exposed to risk in the credit period. Due to the Directors’
consideration of that the Group is not exposed to material
currency exchange risk, the Group did not arrange any
hedge transaction to manage potential fluctuation risk.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had 9,862 employees.
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration),
which comprise wages and salaries, performance related
bonuses, equity-settled share option expenses and retirement
benefit scheme contributions, totalled RMB434.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (the year ended 31
December 2010: RMB197.5 million).

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes
that lead to any material impact on its normal business
operations.
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Dong Li (Z 2), aged 45, is an executive Director and
our chief executive officer, chairman and founder. He has
been appointed as our Director since April 27, 2010, the
date of the incorporation of our Company. He is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Dong
graduated from Northwest Textile University of Science
and Technology, the predecessor of Xi’an Polytechnic
University, in 1988 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering
and Xi'an International Studies College, the predecessor
of Xi'an International Studies University, in 1990 with a
bachelor of arts degree. Mr. Dong has over 10 years of
experience in the battery industry. He led our development
and application for over 20 patent rights relating to
batteries. Contributing to his business experience and
social participation, he received various recognitions and
honours in the past including Outstanding China Non-
governmental Entrepreneur (FEIEFHF R E R P E¥XR),
Rising Star Entrepreneur of Shenzhen (RII[BIZEFE |),
Honorary Citizen (82 R) of Zhaoging City in China and
Texas in the United States, and also holds social positions
including Committee Member of the Youth Committee
of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese
(FEEH ST L8 2Z% 58), Council Member of China
Society For Promotion of the Guangcai Program (B¢
WEZEREZIEE), Member of the Commercial Council
of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (F
EZ2>HE IEB EEEE), Vice Chairman of Guangdong
Commercial Chamber of High-Technology Estate (&
HeRHE%m <8 € &), Honorary Chairman of the
Chinese CEO Organization (EEEF TEretE2eR)
and Executive Vice President of the Southern California.
Overseas Chinese Association (3B /AN E A EGH S
#“eEEElER). Mr. Dong is a Controlling Shareholder
of our Company. For details of the relationship between
Mr. Dong and our Company, please see the section titled
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders”
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Zhao Huan (%), aged 36, is an executive Director and
vice president in charge of international sales, administration,
human resources and treasury of our Company, as well
as the global promotion of our products. She has been
appointed as our Director since June 11, 2010. Ms. Zhao
graduated from Guangdong Economics Management
Cadre College specializing in finance in 1996 and from the
University of Hertfordshire in the UK in 2004 with a master of
arts degree in international business. She has over six years
of experience in international sales. Ms. Zhao first joined
our Company in 2004 as a foreign trade clerk. She was
subsequently promoted to foreign trade manager, deputy
general manager of foreign trade department and finally to
her current position, in which her responsibilities focus more
on the overall management and strategic development of our
sales and marketing. Ms. Zhao personally held 1,500,000
share options in the Company as at 31 December 2011.

Philip Armstrong Noznesky, aged 72, is an executive
Director of our Company and sales president of Leoch
Battery Corp. Mr. Noznesky has been appointed as our
Director since June 11, 2010. He is also the sales president
of Leoch Battery Corp. Mr. Noznesky graduated from Xavier
University in 1962 with a bachelor’s degree in sciences and
obtained a master of arts degree in Russian History from
Georgetown University in 1965. He joined us in 2007 as
sales president of Leoch Battery Corp. in charge of the sales
of our products in the U.S. market. Before joining us, Mr.
Noznesky had been in the management of other companies
in the battery industry, including Energy Battery Group,
Accumuladores Mexicanas, GNB Inc. and General Battery
Corp. He has over 40 years of experience in sales of battery
in the U.S. market. Mr. Noznesky personally held 1,500,000
share options in the Company as at 31 December 2011.
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An Wenbin (Z X ), aged 72, has been appointed as our
independent non-executive Director since October 14, 2010.
Mr. An graduated from Zhongshan University, Guangzhou,
China with a bachelor’s degree in English language and
literature in 1963. In 1965, he obtained a master degree
in English from Beijing Foreign Languages University. He
was appointed as a diplomat to the Chinese Embassy in
Canada between 1978 and 1986 and between 1990 and
1994, part of which periods he served as a Ambassador
and Consulate General of the PRC. In 1987, he headed the
delegation to set up the Chinese Consulate General Office in
Los Angeles, California, and served as the Deputy Counsel
General and later the Counsel General at the office for the
next seven years. In 1995, he was the Chief of Protocol for
the 4thWorldWomen Conference, Beijing, China. From 1995
to 1997, Mr. An served as the Director General of Protocol
Department of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of PRC, during
which he was the Chief of Protocol Director for Hong Kong’s
Sovereignty Return to China Grand Ceremony. In 2001, he
was the Chief of Protocol Coordinator for APEC, Shanghai,
China. As the Chief Protocol and before his retirement
in 2002, Mr. An arranged for and accompanied Chinese
leaders, including President Jiang Zemin, Premier Li Peng
and Premier Zhu Rongji, in their visits to more than 30
countries, including the United States, France, Germany
and Russia. Mr. An personally held 300,000 share options
in the Company as at 31 December 2011.

Cao Yixiong Alan (& J5i#), aged 43, has been appointed
as our independent non-executive Director since October
14, 2010. Mr. Cao holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from
the Anderson School of the University of California, Los
Angeles. He worked at the auditing department of Coopers
& Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the executive director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
chief executive officer, director and founding partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
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a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently
the chairman of the board of supervisors of Chongging
Tongli Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.. Mr. Cao
personally held 300,000 share options in the Company as
at 31 December 2011.

Liu Yangsheng (2[5 4), aged 65, has been appointed as
our independent non-executive Director since October 14,
2010. Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing
College of Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor
of Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications, from
1965 to 1970. After that, he worked at Beijing College
of Posts and Telecommunications for more than 10
years until 1984. Mr. Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, the predecessor of Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, in 1984, and served as the
director of the cadre members department and director of
the human resources department. Mr. Liu retired from the
Ministry of Information Industry, the predecessor of Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, in 2007. Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology is responsible for
the overall management such as promulgation of industry
policies and strategies, implementation of laws and
regulations, and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (R
HEREAE AR A7) and a supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99). Mr. Liu personally held
300,000 share options in the Company as at 31 December
2011.
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Liu Shuen Kong (BE#MiT), aged 40, is our chief financial
officer and our company secretary. Mr. Liu joined our
Company in October 2010. He graduated from RMIT
University of Australia with a bachelor’s degree in accounting
and a master’s degree in accounting in 1996 and 2002,
respectively. He further obtained a master's degree in
business administration from Deakin University of Australia
in 2004. Mr. Liu has more than ten years of experience in
accounting, auditing and management and has worked
at KPMG since 1996 as a manager, senior manager and
supervisor. From 1996 to 1999, he worked in the audit
department of the Hong Kong office of KPMG. From 1999 to
2010, he worked in the financial advisory service department
of the Guangzhou office and Shenzhen office of KPMG. Mr.
Liu is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Qian Guanghong (& 7=), aged 39, is our vice president of
production. He studied management at Tsinghua University
in 2004 and electrochemistry at Harbin Industrial University in
2006. Mr. Qian joined our Company upon its establishment in
1999 and has over 10 years of experience in the production
of batteries. Mr. Qian began his career at our Group as a
head of factory, and was subsequently promoted to general
manager and vice president of production. He is experienced
in the production technology and process of various kinds
of rechargeable batteries. He established our 1ISO14000,
TS16949 and precision production management system and
promoted its application. He is in charge of the production
plans at our production facilities and the procurement and
certification of key production equipment. In December
2008, Mr. Qian was appointed by the China Electrotechnical
Society as a committee member of the First Lead Acid
Reserve Power Battery Expert Committee from 2008 until
2012.
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Hong Yu (it/dl), aged 41, is our vice president in
purchasing. Ms. Hong graduated from Northwest Textile
University for Science and Technology, the predecessor
of Xi’an Polytechnic University, in 1994 majoring in textiles
engineering and minoring in international economics and
sales. Ms. Hong has over 10 years of management and
operational experience. From 1994 to 2000, she worked
at Xi‘an Oumei Handicrafts Co. Ltd (AZBETIERBER
‘A |]) as the manager of the foreign trade department. Ms.
Hong joined our Group in 2000 as a salesperson, and was
subsequently promoted to the manager of the foreign trade
department and deputy general manager of the foreign trade
department. From 2000 to 2005, Ms. Hong was in charge
of our foreign trade department. She was appointed the
vice president of our Company in 2005 in charge of our
purchasing department.

Xiong Zhenglin (B51E#K), aged 41, is our vice president
in charge of engineering and technical development. Mr.
Xiong graduated from Xiang Tan University in 1994 majoring
in industrial chemistry. After graduation, he worked in
Hunan Zhuzhou Motorbike Factory (#E#k)NEEFEE ) as
a technician until 1997. Between 1997 and 1999, Mr. Xiong
worked as a technical engineer at Guangdong Tanggian Xinli
Battery Limited, which is the production base of GS Yuasa
Corporation in the PRC. Mr. Xiong joined our Group in 1999,
and has over 10 years of experience in the management
of battery technology, quality control and equipment. Mr.
Xiong joined our Group as a quality control manager, and
was subsequently promoted to be our chief engineer, and
finally his current position. Mr. Xiong is the joint inventor of
eight patent rights relating to batteries. Mr. Xiong is also a
part-time graduate student advisor at School of Chemistry &
Environment, South China Normal University, a member of
the First Session of Lead-acid Battery Committee (£ — &
METHHEEZE EEZ 8) of China Electrotechnical Society,
a member of the Standardization Committee of the People’s
Republic of China and has participated in the drafting of
several national standards for lead-acid battery industry.
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Li Yujiu (2% 1), aged 61, is our vice president in domestic
sales. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunication in 1980, majoring in physics. Mr. Li has
worked as the deputy station master of Beijing Materials
Supply Station of the Armed Police Headquarter (i Z 4237t
FYE R FE L) in charge for procurement. Mr. Li has almost
20 years of management and sales experience in the area
of telecommunication equipment. Mr. Li joined our Group
in 2005 as a deputy general manager. He was appointed
as our vice president in domestic sales in 2006, in charge
of domestic sales. He also provides support to industry
analysis and operational strategy.

Peng Shawn Meng (&) &), aged 36, is our vice president
in charge of external technical exchange. Mr. Peng graduated
from China Nankai University in 1999 with a bachelor’s
degree in physics and electronics and obtained a master’s
degree in natural science from Louisiana State University
in 2004. After graduation, he remained at Louisiana State
University as an assistant lecturer until 2006. Mr. Peng joined
our Group in 2006 as an engineer and was promoted to
his current position in 2010. Mr. Peng is the brother-in-law
of Mr. Dong.

Liu Shuen Kong (EMiI), aged 40, is our chief financial
officer and our company secretary. For additional details
regarding Mr. Liu background, see the section headed
“Senior Management” above.
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The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 which have been audited by
the Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the
audit committee of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as at
31 December 2011 are set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 62.

The Board proposed a final dividend payment of 1.6 HK
cents per share for the financial year ended 31 December
2011, which will be subject to approval by Shareholders of
the Company at the AGM and full year dividend amounted
to 4.9 HK cents per share.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 65 to 66 and in
note 33 to the financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise the
share premium account and shareholder’s contribution less
accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2011, the reserves
of the Company available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to approximately RMB1,580 million.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 179.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Dong Li (Chairman) (appointed on 27 April 2010)
Ms. Zhao Huan (appointed on 11 June 2010)
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky (appointed on 11 June 2010)

Mr. An Wenbin (appointed on 14 October 2010)
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan (appointed on 14 October 2010)
Mr. Liu Yangsheng (appointed on 14 October 2010)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Philip
Armstrong Noznesky and Mr. An Wenbin will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
from 16 November 2010, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either

party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was
appointed for a term of three years with effect from 16
November 2010.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages
24 to 30.

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance
of individual employees and are reviewed regularly. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 9
to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register required to be kept by the Company referred
to in that section; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were
as follows:

RZTF——F+-_fA=1t—B ARREEIZE
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Number and
class of securities
subject to options

granted under the Approximate
Number and class of Pre-IPO Share percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest securities* Option Scheme shareholding™
TREERDHE
BENBRENE
RUNBRERR
BEfE Bitg #5HE RERN &5 E RER BARRAD LD
Mr. Dong Li Interest in a controlled corporation 1,000,000,000"(L) - 75.0%
EXEHE R LB
Ms. Zhao Huan Beneficial Owner - 1,500,0002(L) 0.11%
BEL T BB
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky Beneficial Owner - 1,500,0009(L) 0.11%
Philip Armstrong Noznesky s & ExBEA
Mr. An Wenbin Beneficial Owner - 300,0001(L) 0.02%
ZXWRE BB
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - 300,0000(L) 0.02%
BN E EafAA
Mr. Liu Yangsheng Beneficial Owner - 300,0006/(L) 0.02%
AGEEE EnfBA
* The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the [LIRKRRERDFHERE °
Shares.
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Notes:

M

Mr. Dong Li is deemed to be interested in 1,000,000,000 Shares
which are beneficially owned by Master Alliance Investment
Limited, a company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

Ms. Zhao Huan has been granted options for 1,500,000 Shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky has been granted options for
1,500,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Please see “Share Option” below for further details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

Mr. An Wenbin has been granted options for 300,000 Shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
Shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Liu Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 Shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,333,334,000 Shares, being the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2011.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2011.
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Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. As at 31 December 2011, the Company
had granted options to subscribe for an aggregate of
39,180,000 Shares (representing approximately 2.9%
of the Company’s total issued share capital as at that
date) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No
further options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. On 22 November 2011, an aggregate
of 15,200,000 share options under the Share Option
Scheme were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate of 15,200,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme (representing
approximately 1.1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).
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As at the date of this annual report, the total number
of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 133,333,400 Shares, which represented
10% of the Shares in issue as at that date.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in
note 31 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

BRRER BENE

Master Alliance Investment Limited™ Beneficial Owner

ERBEAA
* The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
Shares.
Notes:
(1) Master Alliance Investment Limited is a company wholly owned
by Mr. Dong Li.

2) This is based on 1,333,334,000 Shares, being the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2011.

As disclosed above, at 31 December 2011, no person,
other than the Director whose interests and short positions
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares” above, had an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, details of which are as follows:

Mr. Dong Li owns a 60% equity interest in Dongguan
Leoch Power Supply, which makes Dongguan Leoch
Power Supply a connected party of the Company.
Dongguan Leoch entered into a purchase agreement
dated June 30 2010 with Dongguan Leoch Power
Supply pursuant to which Dongguan Leoch Power
Supply agreed to sell and Dongguan Leoch agreed
to purchase certain buildings with an aggregate
GFA of approximately 10,000 sg.m. constructed by
Dongguan Leoch Power Supply on a piece of land
owned by Dongguan Leoch in Dongguan, PRC. Under
the purchase agreement, the amount of consideration
payable by Dongguan Leoch is to be determined by
an independent valuation expert at the time of issue of
a real estate title certificate in respect of the buildings,
and is only due and payable after the issue of such
certificate by the relevant government authorities to
Dongguan Leoch. Pending the issue of the real estate
title certificate, Dongguan Leoch Power Supply has
granted to Dongguan Leoch a license to use the
buildings at nil consideration.

i
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The Group has entered into the following leases
with Mr. Dong Li and his associates:

(@)

Lease of Units E8, E9, E148 and E149 of
the Main Building of Xin Bao Hui Building,
No. 2061 Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC

Lease of Units E1-E4, E6, E7, E14-EBG,
E72-E112, E116-E135 and E138-E145 of
the main building of Xin Bao Hui Building,
No0.2061, Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC

Lease of Portion of Unit 901 on Level 9
of Tianzheng International Plaza, No0.399
Zhongyang Road, Nanjing City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC

Lease of an Office Unit on Level 19 of an
Office Building Located at 14 Kitchener
Link, No.19-29, Singapore

Lease of a Building Located at 19751
Descartes Foothill Ranchs, County of
Orange, State of California, the United
States
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The Company entered into a master agreement
with Mr. Dong Li dated 1 August 2010 (the “Master
Sales Agreement”) which sets out the terms and
conditions upon which members of the Group will
sell to Mr. Dong’s associates, and Mr. Dong Li’s
associates will purchase from members of the
Group, products including lead-acid batteries,
mainly motive power batteries, and related parts.
The products to be sold and purchased under the
Master Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing
market price, namely, the price at which the same
type of products is sold by us to independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The
Master Sales Agreement is for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2010. Upon
expiry of the term, the Master Sales Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for a further period of three
years by mutual agreement. The annual caps
for the sales transactions under the Master
Sales Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2012 have been set at RMB38.0
million, RMB46.0 million and RMB54.0 million,
respectively.
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The Company entered into a master agreement dated
1 August 2010 with Mr. Dong Li (the “Master Purchase
Agreement”) which sets out the terms and conditions
upon which members of the Group will purchase from
Mr. Dong Li’s associates, and Mr. Dong Li’s associates
will sell to members of the Group, products including
battery cases, parts, models, chargers and electronic
products (for the manufacturing of the Group’s battery
products or sale as accessories of the Group’s battery
products) and electric scooters (for use by members
of the Group). The products to be sold and purchased
under the Master Purchase Agreement shall be at the
prevailing market price, namely, the price at which the
same type of products is sold to us by independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2010. Upon expiry of the term, the Master
Purchase Agreement will, subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, be renewed for further period of
three years by mutual agreement. The annual caps for
the transactions under the Master Purchase Agreement
for the three years ending December 31, 2012 have
been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0 million and
RMBG60.0 million, respectively.
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The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected transaction
and confirmed that the transaction has been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transaction on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group above in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to
have interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group. On 21 December 2010, each of the controlling
shareholders of the company namely Mr. Dong Li and Master
Alliance Investment Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”),
entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) with the Company pursuant to which each
of the Controlling Shareholders has individually, jointly,
unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken and represented
to the Company and each member of the Group that,
among other things, he/it will not and will procure that
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his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly, in
businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to
the Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

7.3%
28.6%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

11.5%
32.0%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major customers.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it
is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

No significant events have been taken place subsequent to
the balance sheet date.

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2011
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion
of the Board, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011 with the exception of the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual and
A.5.4 of the CG Code in relation to the obligation of directors
under the Model Code. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company as well as details relating to
the foregoing deviations are summarized below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices that are appropriate to the conduct
and growth of its business and to review its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure they comply
with the increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and
to meet the expectations of shareholders and investors.
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The Board, led by the chairman of the Company,
is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the
authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group.
In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. All Directors
have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major
matters of the Company, including: approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to the senior management of
the Company. These responsibilities include
implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and
management of the Company in accordance with
the management strategies and plans approved
by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control
systems.
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The Board comprises three executive Directors:
Mr. Dong Li (Chairman), Ms. Zhao Huan and Mr.
Philip Armstrong Noznesky; and three independent
non-executive Directors: Mr. An Wenbin, Mr. Liu
Yangsheng and Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
possesses different business experience,
knowledge and professional background. The
Board has at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The
Board has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Board continues to regard
each of them as independent up to the date of
this report.

The Company has at least one-third of its Board
members being independent non-executive
Directors. Independent non-executive Directors
have been invited to serve on the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Through participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is set out under
the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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The biographical details of the directors and the
relationships among the members of the Board
are disclosed under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

A.3.1 Board Practices and Conduct of Meeting

Schedules for regular Board meetings are
normally agreed with Directors in advance
to facilitate their attendance. In addition,
notice of at least 14 days is given for a
regular Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. Draft agenda of each Board meeting
is usually sent to all Directors together with
the notice of meeting in order to give them
an opportunity to include any other matters
in the agenda for discussion in the meeting.
Board papers together with the related
information are sent to Directors at least
3 days before each Board meeting. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board and committee
meetings.

The chairman, the company secretary
and chief financial officer and other
relevant senior management members
normally attend regular Board meetings
and, where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the
Group. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever
necessary. Where appropriate, the Directors
can obtain independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company.
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According to current Board practice, any
material transaction, which involves a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a Director, will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Articles of Association contain
provisions requiring directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

A.3.2 Directors’ Attendance Records at Board

Meetings

The Board meets regularly for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the
Company. Additional meetings are held
when significant events or important issues
are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the year ended 31 December
2011, the Board held five meetings and
the attendance records of each director at
these Board meetings are set out below:

Attendance/
Number of
Name of Director Board Meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. Dong Li 5/5
Ms. Zhao Huan 5/5
Mr. Philip Armstrong
Noznesky 5/5
Independent
Non-executive Directors
Mr. An Wenbin 5/5
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 5/5
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 5/5
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Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Dong Li is the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company. As
Mr. Dong is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the Lead-acid battery
industry, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to have Mr. Dong taking up
both roles for continuous effective management
and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure
of vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company in the same
person will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management
of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors
is engaged for a term of three years commencing
from their respective dates of appointment and is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
pursuant to the Articles of Association.

According to the Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Besides, any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting and any new Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.
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Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the Articles
of Association, two of the Directors, namely Mr.
Philip Armstrong Noznesky and Mr. An Wenbin
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the meeting.
The Company’s circular, sent together with this
annual report, contains detailed information of the
retiring Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-
election and removal of directors are laid down
in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, developing and formulating
procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors. Details of
the Nomination Committee and its work performed
are set out in the “Board Committees” section
below.

All the Directors received an induction on
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operation of the Group and
full awareness of director responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. Such induction is
normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s
key business sites and/or meetings with the
senior management of the Company.

The existing Directors are updated with legal
and regulatory developments and changes in the
business and the market to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and
professional development to Directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct governing the Directors’ dealings
in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Directors and all of them
have confirmed that save as disclosed below,
they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report.

Due to inadvertence, on 23 August 2011 (being
the publication date of the half-year results
for the six months ended 30 June 2011), the
Company granted share options to various eligible
participants including the three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. An Wenbin, Mr.
Cao Yixiong Alan and Mr. Liu Yangsheng, under
the share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 14 October 2010 which resulted in the breach
of Rule A3(a)(ii) of Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules on the part of the three independent non-
executive Directors. The grant of share options
had been withdrawn on 12 September 2011. The
Board will use its best endeavours to prevent
similar incidents to happen again.

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the Company’s and the
Stock Exchange’s website. All Board committees report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in
conducting meetings of Board committees follow in
line with, so far as practicable, those of the Board
meetings set out in section A.3.1 above.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Dong Li, Mr. An Wenbin
and Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, the latter two being
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. An
Wenbin is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of the remuneration of the Directors and the
senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; (c) make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive director and senior management of
the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment;
(d) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of
the Company: (e) to review and approve the
remuneration payable to the executive directors
and senior management of the Company for
any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with relevant
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive; (f) review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and (g)
ensure that no director of the Company or any of
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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During the year ended the date of this annual
report, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and the attendance records of each
member at the meeting are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. An Wenbin 2/2
Mr. Dong Li 2/2
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, Mr. An Wenbin and
Mr. Liu Yangsheng, all of them are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan,
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and he
possesses relevant accounting and financial
management expertise.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (j) review the financial statements
and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function or
external auditor before submission to the Board;
(i) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
and (iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system and
associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 28 March 2012
with the presence of Mr. Cao Yixiong, Mr. An Wenbin
and Mr. Liu Yangsheng together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and
performed the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of audit work, auditor’s
fees and terms of engagement for the year
ended 31 December 2011; and
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- Review and discuss the financial statements,
results announcement and report for
the year ended 31 December 2011, the
related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings.

During the year ended the date of this annual
report, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the attendance records of each member at
the meeting are set out below:

Attendance/
Name of Director Number of Meetings
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. An Wenbin 2/2
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 2/2

The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Dong Li, Mr. An Wenbin
and Mr. Liu Yangsheng, the majority of which are
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Dong Li
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (c) assess the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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During the year ended the date of this annual
report, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings and the attendance records of each
member at the meeting are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. Dong Li 2/2
Mr. An Wenbin 2/2
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 2/2

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company
with a view to ensuring that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards
are complied with. The Board has received from the
senior management the management accounts and
such accompanying explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an effective internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s
assets and for reviewing the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis. The senior management
reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to
address the variances and identified risks.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 60 to 61.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
remuneration paid and payable to Ernst & Young, the
Company’s external auditor, for audit services to the
Group in relation to annual audit amounted to HK$1.5
million and HK$0.9 million, respectively; and for non-
audit services, comprising professional services for
tax services, amounted to RMBO0.81 million and RMBO
million, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the
Controlling Shareholders, an annual declaration on
his/its compliance with the undertakings contained in
the Deed of Non-Competition entered into by each
of them in favour of the Company pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders has individually,
jointly, unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken and
represented to the Company and each member of
the Group that, among other things, he/it will not
and will procure that his/its associates will not to
engage, directly or indirectly, in businesses which will
or may compete with the business carried on or to be
carried on by the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-
Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed and were satisfied that each of the Controlling
Shareholders, has complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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The Board believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor’s understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognises the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which will
enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.leoch.com”
as a communication platform for shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are available
for public access. Shareholders and investors may
write directly to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the
Company provide an important channel for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the
Board as well as the chairmen and/or other members
of the Board Committees will endeavor to be available
to answer questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings
will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of
the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.
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Ernst & Young
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To the shareholders of
Leoch International Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
62 to 178, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) (which also include International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and for the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing, issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRSs and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A5 a A TH I 3R

31 December 2011
—E——4f-A=+-—H

2011 2010
—B——fF —ZF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AR®ET T
REVENUE Wz \ 6 3,164,056 2,116,871
Cost of sales SHER A (2,510,311) (1,591,254)
Gross profit EH 653,745 525,617
Other income and gains HAa A Rz 6 70,878 22,375
Selling and distribution costs SHE K SR AR (114,048) (76,495)
Administrative expenses THAX (179,758) (119,261)
Other expenses H At B 32 (73,545) (30,311)
Finance costs IR IDN 8 (29,128) (22,205)
Share of profits of associates JE (& N B A 122 =
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Tt AR ) 7 328,266 299,720
Income tax expense FTiSHiFA 11 (44,646) (42,210)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RER R 283,620 257,510
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  Efth 2 M
Exchange differences on MEIRINETEH)
translation of foreign operations PE =58 (8,773) (1,027)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AEFHM AW
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (8,773) (1,027)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE REE2E KB
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 274,847 256,483
Profit attributable to: DATA%J?EE%T&%'J :
Owners of the Company PIN/NCIEZ =N 283,620 257,510
Non-controlling interests FEIERRAE A - -
283,620 257,510
Total comprehensive income LATATEEEE
attributable to: WEn 48 RE
Owners of the Company ZiNNIEF N 274,847 256,483
Non-controlling interests FEPERRAE A - -
274,847 256,483
EARNINGS PER SHARE AN ki g
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY HE AEMN
EQUITY HOLDERS BRET
OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic R ,
— For profit for the year —ARFE AR¥0.217t | AR%O0.257T
Diluted &
— For profit for the year — RNEZ & AR#0.217t | AR%O0.247T
Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year — NG &R < & HEK IR B 5H 15 R B ISR R M 5513

are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Interest in associates
Intangible assets
Non-current portion of
trade receivables
Deposits paid for purchase
of items of property,
plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Time deposits
Non-current portion of
pledged deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Tax recoverable

Amounts due from
related companies

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Time deposits with terms
over 3 months

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Amounts due to related companies
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FEREEE

I NG

B L HE A

N EWNEI ) o

BILEE

B 5 RUGRIEN
FERN AR 1D

SR - BB M
R &

ERERIAE &

EBER
EHE#F R
FERN AR 12

FRBEERE

MEEE
A

B 5 RUGRIE & R
BNFIE - FTE Rk

H A UK IR
FER O R TR
U B N B F0R

DA BEZST ABRE
MR E

HB=EHZ
EHER
EHE#1FK

Re LA HEY

MEEERE

mERE

B HRNRIERENRE
H b FE 55008 K 5T &
SHERITIEE
FENBE R BIF0R

FES PS8
mERERE
MEEEFE

BEAERRESAEE

Notes

B &E

15
16
19
17

21

29
24

24

20
21

22

27
23

24
24
24

25
26
28
27

31 December 2011
—F——F+ZA=t—H

2010
—E-FTF

RMB’000
ARBETIT

520,929
57,907

3,401
11,335

42,684
1,801

637,957
687,654
585,140

175,008
24,997

4,806
1,480
721,075
67,311
178,647
2,446,118
345,450
161,320
416,629
48,135
32,5656
1,004,090

1,442,028

2,079,985
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010
—F-—F5| ZFTFF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T ARETF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 29 4,209 211
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it BRITEE 28 330,691 -
Total non-current liabilities ETEaERRE 334,900 211
Net assets BEFE 2,330,214 2,079,774
EQUITY e
Issued capital BEITARA 30 114,267 114,267
Reserves B 33(a) 2,215,947 1,965,507
Total equity R BEE 2,330,214 2,079,774
Dong Li Zhao Huan
2= HEE
Director Director
= =
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At 31 December 2010
and 1 January 2011

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income for the year:
Exchange differences
on translation
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Dividend

Equity-settled share
option arrangements

Appropriations to reserves

At 31 December 2011

*

Issued

capital

BETRA

Notes ~ RMB'000
ME ARETT
(Note 30)

(Ht330)

RZZ-Z5+-A

=+-AR=%

—&-A-A 114,267
FERRT =
TEEH

PEME :

BESANER

EHEE
FEERENGEE
4} 13 -
R SRR ER

31 -

b =
RZF-——F+2F

=+-A 114,267

Share
premium
account*
R EER"

RMB'000
AREFT
(Note 33(b))
(Mi7£33(0))

1,342,297

(67,289)

1,285,012

Merger
reserve*
Xt
RMB'000
ARETT
(Note 33(a))
(P£E33(e)

275,106

275,106

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of RMB2,215,947,000 (2010: RMB1,965,507,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Share
option
reserve*
BRERE
RMB'000
AREFT
(Note 33(b))
(PH7E33(0))

6,830

11,546

18,376

*

EELRE

31 December 2011

—F——%+ZA=1+—-H

Statutory
reserve
fund*

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve*
B e
RMB'000
AREFT
(Note 33(a))
(PH7E33())

RMB'000
AREFT
(Note 33(a))
(FitiEa3a)

49,631

5,606

= (8,773)

= (8,773)

21,348 =

70,979 (3,167)

Proposed

Retained final
profits*  dividend Total
REBA HRAHRE &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETE
286,038 2,079,774
283,620 - 283,620
- (8,773)
283,620 - 274,847
21,332 (35,953)
- 11,546
(21,348) - -
548,310 21,332 2,330,214

I 5 R AR A AR B I SRR R R 2 4R & e 1
AR#2,215,947,0007T (ZF—FF : AR

#1,965,507,0007T )

o
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31 December 2011

—ET—%+=ZA=+—H

At 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income for the year:
Exchange differences
on translation
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Contributed by then equity
holders of the subsidiaries
before group reorganisation
Dividends paid to then equity
holders of the subsidiaries
before group reorganisation
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Acquisition of subsidiaries
pursuant to group
reorganisation
Equity-settled share
option arrangements
Appropriations to reserves

At 31 December 2010

Issued
capital
ERITRE
RMB’'000
ARETTT
(Note 30)
(M£E30)
RIZZNETZA
—BR=%
~§5-A-H
RERRT =
REEEM
2EKE
BEFNEBH
ERERE

—+

A

rEERE

Waias -
EFSANERHN

B AR

FEALE -
MEBSARERR

B AR
FEAZRRE 13 =
Bl 30 114,267
e -
RESEEA

WERE AT

BigEk

Bzt 31 -
BifFRtE =

114,267

Share
premium
account*
B EER

RMB’000
ANRETT
(Note 33(b))
(P7E33())

1,414,053
(71,756)

1,342,297
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Share
Merger option
reserve*  reserve*

RORE BRERE
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARMTR
(Note 33(a)) (Note 33(b))
(FirEE33(@)  (FEES3(b))

264,717 =
12,959 =
(2,571) =

= 6,830

275,105 6,830

Statutory
reserve
fund*
EEARSE
RMB’000
ARETT
(Note 33(a))
(Miz£33(2)

22,251

27,380

49,631

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve*
B 5 i
RMB'000
AREFT
(Note 33(a))
(Miz£33(2)

6,633

(1,027)

(1,027)

5,606

Retained
profits*
REBAN
RMB’000
AREFT

203,563
257,510

257,510

(147,655)

(27,380)

286,038

Total

4t
RMB'000
ANRETT

497,164
257,510

(1,027)

256,483

12,959

(147,655)
1,528,320
(71,756)

(2,57)

6,830

2,079,774



CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Fair value loss/(gain) from
equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Loss/(gain) on disposal of
items of property, plant
and equipment

Share of profits of associates

Depreciation

Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of deferred
government grants

Government grants credited
to other income

Impairment provision for
trade receivables

Equity-settled share option
expenses

Transaction expenses for
offering and listing of shares

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and
bills receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Increase in trade and bills payables
Increase in other payables
and accruals
Movements in balance
with a director
Movements in balances
with related parties

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash flows used in
operating activities

PA

"

K

H

M TR LS TR &
B A5 A1 Al

NSRRI AR
BTSN
F 2UA

AR BERDH AR
AR AERAR D fo B

BEIEKR (W)
REME - BEREE
E A HER (W)

L /NI IDES
e
TAS L3 7H B R

E B R
A X AU 470 B 8 5

BEAELA WA BRI 4 A

B 5 EWGRIR
BB R
VAR 52 45 H BB AR T <

BhBEEREHZ
RHFX

A
R 2L OB R
rer i

T 208 - 8% REA
R SR

5 8 3 508 R BB (T

Hib B EE R
FETE M8 0
HE-FEEZHN

FEERE B
ELE A+ 2 AR
BHEH

mEms/ (FrRBRS
B FEH

R EB R
RenEs8

Notes

B &t

15

16
17

21

31

31 December 2011
—F——F+ZA=t—H

2010
—E-EF

RMB’000
ARBTT

299,720

22,205
(2,706)

(275)

(33)
42,100

1,573
372

(433)
(14,506)
3,786
6,830

16,871
375,504

(506,995)
(240,522)

(169,536)
182,344

39,938
(61,047)
23,191

(357,123)
(23,798)

(380,921)
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31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

2010
—ZF
Notes RMB’000
B 5T AR®ET T
Net cash flows used in K E BT A
operating activities RemEFRE (380,921)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING & E&EEBHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 YA S 1,077
Purchases of items of property, WY -~ BRE &
plant and equipment HAEIEE (224,722)
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEBWE¥ - ME &R
property, plant and equipment 18 B W PT1S 3R 2,347
Additions in prepaid land lease TEf £ A8 B 2 A8
payments (17,019
Investment in an associate & N RIRE =
Additions in intangible assets B EEIE M (1,077)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits #R:iB31E A 7 F T
with terms over 3 months (1) (721,079)
Proceeds from/(investments in) ST EFE
financial instruments I8,/ (KA ) (1,205)
Increase in pledged deposits B TE L 0 (48,557)
Net cash flows used in investing BB FT AR
activities REREFHE (1,010,231)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®EEEFNIEERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance IR1H 31T - BITHOFHEE
expenses 1,439,693
New bank borrowings FERITER 652,370
Repayment of bank borrowings EBIRTTER (409,072)
Interest paid EH%'JE\ (22,205)
Dividend paid BTRRE 13 (147,655)
Increase in pledged deposits Eﬁﬁﬁ I AN -
Receipt of government grants W B BR S 47 6 14,506
Net cash flows from BB EBELN
financing activities REmEFE 1,627,637
NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN B4 RELZEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (Ri4), /18 158 136,485
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNRE R
beginning of year fﬁ%—r{ﬁ% 43,189
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHHTE  F8
changes, net (1,027)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  RFXRAIEE K
AT END OF YEAR ReEEY 178,647
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RekBHeEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS M aEER DT
Cash and bank balances and RITRBeHHR K
unpledged deposits IR 24 178,647
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Non-current portion of pledged

deposits
Time deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Time deposits with terms
over 3 months

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

FRBEE
iNCRIEYNGIE: OEE=
EHTF K
FRBEERE

MENEE
H8iE31E8 A < E #fF R

EERER

RBehBReFEY

BNIEAE - FIE R
Hfth UK IR

MEEERE
mBEE
HAth FE A 5RIR & fEFT B A

AHRIRTTIEE R
HipfEE

MBEEARR
MEEEFE
BERERRBAME
FREBAE
AHRIRTTIEERE R
HipfEE

BEFE

BT

Dong Li

%

Director

BF

[RE:: B EREZ 0B SHIb i)

B &E

18

24
24

24
24
24

22

26

28

28

33(b)

Zhao Huan

Notes

HE
Director

BF

31 December 2011
—F——F+ZA=t—H

2010
—ET-FF

RMB’000
ARBTT

1,009,571

1,009,571

721,075

45,128

1,629

767,832

767,832

1,777,403

1,777,403

114,267
1,663,136

1,777,403
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31 December 2011
—F——F+ZA=t—H

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the
office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture, development
and sale of lead-acid batteries.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the holding company and the ultimate
holding company is Master Alliance Investment Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, certain
buildings, derivative financial instruments and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate.

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

ZEGAVBERREEARARENB QA
(AR DREBE—_FT——F+-A
St HUEFENPBRE - MBARER
REZWBHRERZBEHEAR - WA —
B BFTHRRE - B AR Z & hWiE
BH(AIAKRBRFEHE B EFEaA
R WHBGAAREZSENERIL2E
Bl MESEARRER XS AEER
MREMEKNRERBm REBEARADAH
EEAHPEREE -

MBARZ 2SR R BN IEERE
@ Bt B S| SRR AR -

BB A RIS 2 2 BB (K Sk 1 4
HE) T RS 3 BT o

fi A S B Ok = 3 — R B B &) Z bl 4% - R
HAE®AZMB ARz EE(RERE) R
BIE - ()EA IR R 2 2 BR T (B e (iil) 70 1
B R R HER - RER)TUAE
ZARBE (MMEREBEAREZAREE
Ke(ii)iB e B R R E S E £ 2 B RSB 1E o
ERNEMEmEaRANERZAEEENG
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31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

IFRS 1 Amendment ~ Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards
— Limited Exemption from
Comparative IFRS 7 Disclosures
for First-time Adopters

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

IAS 32 Amendment  Amendment to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues

IFRIC 14 Amendments to IFRIC 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

Improvements to Amendments to a number of
IFRSs 2010 IFRSs issued in May 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of IAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to IFRS
3, IAS 1 and IAS 27 included in Improvements to
IFRSs 2010 , the adoption of the new and revised
IFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these IFRSs are as
follows:
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IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in
which persons and key management personnel
affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption
from the general related party disclosure
requirements for transactions with a government
and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the same government
as the reporting entity. The accounting policy for
related parties has been revised to reflect the
changes in the definitions of related parties under
the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details
of the related party transactions, including the
related comparative information, are included in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details
of the key amendments most applicable to the
Group are as follows:
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IFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment
clarifies that the amendments to IFRS 7, IAS
32 and IAS 39 that eliminate the exemption
for contingent consideration do not apply to
contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede
the application of IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008).

In addition, the amendment limits the scope
of measurement choices for non-controlling
interests. Only the components of non-controlling
interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by another IFRS.

The amendment also added explicit guidance to
clarify the accounting treatment for non-replaced
and voluntarily replaced share-based payment
awards.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The
amendment clarifies that an analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income can
be presented either in the statement of changes in
equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
The Group elects to present the analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income in the
statement of changes in equity.
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IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from IAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to IAS 21, IAS 28 and
IAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or
earlier if IAS 27 is applied earlier.

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards —
Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters’

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets’
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IFRS 12

IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 12 Amendments

IAS 19 (2011)

IAS 27 (2011)

IAS 28 (2011)

IFRIC 20

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2012

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015
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Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as
follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on
the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
This aims to improve and simplify the approach
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39.

In November 2010, the IASB issued additions to
IFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of
the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For these
FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.
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IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS
39 on hedge accounting and impairment of financial
assets continues to apply. The Group expects to adopt

IFRS 9 from 1 January 2015.

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by IFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in IAS 27
and SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses
the accounting for consolidated financial statements.

It also includes the issues raised in SIC 12.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate

consolidation.

IFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities that are previously included in IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and IAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new

disclosure requirements for these entities.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011

BRI BREENFOREAET2NAERS
FHERIFEI95E - REEENAAT - BIR £
AIEISR N EF &t R EMEE ZRETE
Migs|EEER AREBEMAE _FT—AF
—A— BERABERI S REERNER -

BV SHREERFI10RBELERRAAEE
E(PEERENEBREEEER) 28—
THIERN o ZEABFEES 2 HER - AR
BEABHLGEMER - MER AR F27
FRBERMEREERELZESF129RERE —
BHRANERBZREMAL  BERTBREE
A0Sl AR B SR EAEBE R IGAE
LB A FE - AT L B AR P o B
BRI RS RS ERIE 105 IR R S5 E R E
27 ARG RIB N SRR IE Ol bR e M Sk
ZARE - TEREBRMEREREZESSE
12542 I 2 [ R8 o

BB B B 3R 5 R 1SR R B BR & 51 2 R
FNFERNBLERANERRFEREZES
FISFEHAFAEFER-SEHEHZIEER
HE - HARRAEG LTI AR %
ERERPAMBETY A LR ARK
ERAERR] BUHTRAZLAZEENE
EBRBEARZEE -

B mEERE12RBEMBEAF
BERE BMEARREBUEERZHER
T ZERTEAEREEREE ST ERE27
SARA LB M HRE - BR SR ERIF31
R A &R m gD kB g5 ER 285
REEZERBINRE 2R - ZERITFSI AT %
FERCZHEMPERE



Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and
IAS 28 as a result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11
and IFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 10,
IFRS 11, IFRS 12, and the consequential amendments
to IAS 27 and IAS 28 from 1 January 2013.

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group
is required to use fair value, but provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted under other IFRSs. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 13 prospectively from
1 January 2013.

Amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. ltems that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, upon derecognition or settlement) would
be presented separately from items which will never
be reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2013.

IAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value. The amendments introduce a rebuttable
presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the
basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through
sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in SIC 21 Income Taxes -
Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured
using the revaluation model in IAS 16, should always
be measured on a sale basis. The Group expects to
adopt IAS 12 Amendments from 1 January 2012.
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IAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification
of short-term employee benefits and disclosures of
defined benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt
IAS 19 (2011) from 1 January 2013.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
profit or loss and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associates and is not
individually tested for impairment.

When an investment in an associate is classified as
held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5.

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and deferred tax assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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An assessment is made at the end of the year as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the year in which it arises.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group;

or
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(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 - 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 — 5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 - 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred, the title has been passed
to the buyer and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold.
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Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When funds have been borrowed generally, and
used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 4.36% has been applied to the
expenditure on the qualifying assets.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity within the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
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Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. All differences are taken to profit or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas entities
within the Group are currencies other than the RMB.
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the reporting date and, their incomes
and expenses are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised
in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas entities within
the Group are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas entities within the
Group which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. Where the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis
to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
of the reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition as cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software of the Group is amortised over the
estimated useful life of 10 years.
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All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred. Expenditure incurred on projects to develop
new products is capitalised and deferred only when
the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at end of
reporting period.

The Group’s financial assets include pledged deposits,
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies and equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss represent financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
other income and gains in profit or loss.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments
depends on the nature of the assets.
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in interest income
in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

The Group assesses at the end of reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to
a director and related companies and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

The measurement of loans and borrowings is as
follows:
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After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and option pricing models.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads.
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Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices,
less estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in property, plant and equipment
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to profit or loss so
as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.
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Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited
to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Obligatory retirement benefits in the form of
contributions under a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by local government agencies
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial lattice model, further
details of which are given in note 31 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of the reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All
cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are
treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years are discussed
below.

Impairment of trade receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires management’s judgment and estimates.
Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
the debts. Where the actual outcome or future
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the carrying value
of the receivables, doubtful debt expenses and
write-back of impairment of trade receivables
in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

The carrying value of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or, where
appropriate, the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, is calculated as the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to estimate
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations, competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles
or unforeseeable change in legal enforcement
rights in future. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful life of intangible
assets of similar functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations.
Management reassesses the useful life at each
reporting date.

Net realisable value of an inventory is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature which could change significantly as a result
of competitor actions. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.

As described in note 31 to the financial
statements, the Company has engaged an
independent professionally qualified valuer to
assist in the valuation of the share options granted
during reporting period. The fair value of options
granted under the pre-IPO share option scheme
is determined using the binomial lattice model.
The significant inputs into the model were the
weighted average share price at the grant date,
risk-free interest rate, exercise price, expected
volatility of the underlying shares, expected
dividend yield and expected life of options.

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development costs in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits. At
31 December 2011, the best estimate of the
carrying amount of capitalised development costs
was RMB25,031,000 (2010: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. Particulars of Companies 4. AL BB 2~ F R
Comprising the Group
As at the year end, the Company had direct or indirect RAFER ARRRUATEEZEWBLARA
interests in the following principal subsidiaries: B HEER
Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
R R EEfTR NG
HEAR By /RAE BB HREA REBHEDY ITEH

Direct  Indirect
Ef Bk

% %

Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp. 11 March 2003 PRC US$39,245,211 = 100 Investment holding and
(Jiangsu Leoch”) 1 ZEECE i 39,245, 211% T manufacture and sale

THETENERAT =R+-H of lead-acid batteries
([Tt ) REBR - FENEENR

ey

Zhaoging Leoch Battery 9 May 2005 PRC US$34,365,975 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. ZETRE i 34,365,975% T lead-acid batteries
(‘Zhaoging Leoch’) © HANA HEREERRES Y

ERETSRRIERAT
([2EEL])

Anhui Leach Battery 26 July 2006 PRC US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Corp. ZELE i 10,001 45557t lead-acid batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Battery') +R=-tH HEREERRES Y

RERTEHRMERAR
([ZEELE))

Shenzhen Leoch Battery 26 April 1999 PRC RMB20,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and
Technology Co., Ltd. —MANE i AR20,000,0007 manufacture and sale
(‘Shenzhen Leoch”) MA=17H of lead-acid batteries

AT RERRIERAR RESR - BERNEENR
(TREEL)) EE
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4. HHLRUAS £R B B9 2w RE S

Comprising thC GI‘OUp (continued) (#8)
Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
MR/ EETR DR
HEAR A/ ERAE EEME HREA REEREDY IZEH
Direct  Indirect
B L
% %

Dongguan Leach Battery 27 November 2002 PRC RMB3,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd, “33CF G RS 500,000 lead-acid batteries
(‘Dongguan Leoch’) t-A=ttA HEMEERRESH

REMELRSREN
ERAT(R%EL])

Kinetic Growth International 11 January 2008 Hong Kong HKS2 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
Limited (‘Kinetic Growth’) ZZT\E 4 BT batteries

BEARARAA(EE) —-A+-A HENRESD

Leoch Battery Gorporation 17 June 2003 USA US$200,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
(‘Leoch Battery Corp’) “%3= e 200,000%7T batteries
(TLeoch Battery Corp)) ~ATtA HERRESH

Leoch Power Supply (HK.) 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale
Limited (‘Leoch Power Supply’) ~EEWF 5 12,000,000% 0 of lead-acid batteries

BIER(EE)ARAA NATAR REBRARHE 5B
([BtER)) EE

Honour Label Investments 28 February 2005 BvI USS1 = 100 Investment holding
Limited (‘Honour Label’) “3TRF AERAHS %7 RERR
([Honour Label]) “B=t/\H

Peak Year Investments 25 January 2007 BvI USS1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited (‘Peak Year') 3 RERIEE 1% RERR
([Peak Year]) i il
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4. Particulars of Companies Comprising 4. ZH B 7 28 [ #Y 24 &) B9 7 1

thC GI'OUp (continued) (#5)
Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
RUBER/ EETR ADRER
HEAR RY/2ERAH EELY HRER REERADY IZEH
Direct  Indirect
B L
% %

Shigldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BVI US$1 = 100 Investment holding

(“Shigldon’)( Shieldon]) 3T AERTHS 1% RERER
—-AtNH

Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) g £ 1,000,000 sale of lead-acid batteries
([Leoch Battery Company]) MA-t+EA AR Ry R

EE

Nanjing Leoch Battery 15 March 2006 PRC RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co, Ltd. I hE AE%300,0007 batteries
(‘Nanjing Leoch’) =A+3A pesmEEy

ARELRERR
BRAA(EREL])

Beijng Leoch Engineering 14 December 2004~ PRC RMB,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co., Ltd. “TEME B ARHA,000,0007 batteries
(‘Befing Leoch”) TZA+mA HERRESH

TRETRERA
BRAA(EREL])

Kunming Leoch Engineering 25 May 2006 PRC RMB500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co., Ltd. = VY2 LG ARE500,0007T batteries
(Kunming Leoct’) BA=t1A HERRESH

EAETRTER
RRAA(RAEL])
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4.2ﬁ$%3%®ﬂ%ﬁ%

Comprising thC Group (continued) (75
Place of Percentage of
Date of incorporation equity interest
incorporation/ and registration/ Issued and attributable
Subsidiaries registration operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
RUBER/ EETR NG
KEAR By /ERAE EENY HREA REBHEDY ITEH
Direct Indirect
B 5
% %

Xining Leoch Engineering 25 November 2006 PRC RMB700,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co., Ltd. v G ARE700,0007 batteries
(*ining Leoch’) +-A=1%A HERRESH

RERTRTRER
BRAA(RERL))

Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp. 27 September 2007 PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
(‘Shenzhen Leoch Battery’) “EEtE G AR 1,000,000 batteries

MIBTEHRAERAT NA=TtA HENRESH
([RIELED))

Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BV USS6 100 Investment
Company Limited “5-%F ABRAES 6% holding
(‘Catherine Holdings”) #A=A RERR
([ Cathering Holdings )

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore 5G$510,700 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.") ® “E-%% Ep 510,7004 1% T batteries
(T Leoch Battery Pte.J)” mARA HENRETY

Anhui Leach Power Supply Corp. 26 October 2010 PRC HK$177,316,731 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(*Anhui Leoch Power’) ¢ “E-%F e 177,316, 731587 lead-acid batteries
PR ERRNERAA TAZ1/R HENHELRET

(TZgRLER )
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Notes:

(1) The additional capital injection into Jiangsu Leoch by the
Company amounted to US$5,000,000 in 2011, and the
related capital verification report was issued by Jiangsu
Dingxin Certified Public Accountants ( “JLZErS{=&5tEM
EEET).

(2)  The additional capital injection into Zhaoging Leoch
by the Company amounted to US$6,364,000 in 2011,
and the related capital verification report was issued by
Zhaoging Xiangxin Certified Public Accountants (“ &
HEETRERA).

(8)  The additional capital injection into Leoch Battery Pte.
amounted to SG$310,700 by Leoch Investment (Singapore)
Pte. LTD. was completed on 18 August 2011.

(4)  The additional capital injection into Anhui Leoch Power
by the Company amounted to HK$102,316,631 in 2011,
and the related capital verification report was issued by
Anhui Shicheng Certified Public Accountants ( * Z2 1 tt 3
SRR ERFT).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale
of lead-acid batteries. For management purposes,
the Group operates in one business unit based on its
products, and has one reportable segment which is
the manufacture and sale of lead-acid batteries.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form
the above reportable operating segment.
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2010
—E-TF
RMB’000
AR¥ETTT
Mainland China B A e 878,176
European Union (B 409,179
United States of America X6 343,894
Other Asian countries/areas  HARZRMBIR /Hyf@ 399,417
Other countries HAth B 86,205
2,116,871
The revenue information above is based on the EXHREERTEREF KR DT o
location of the customers.
All significant operating assets of the Group are AEEMBEEZNEEEEAUNFERX
located in the Mainland China. Accordingly, no BE o AW EZY] S EEEMMEER -
geographical information of segment assets is
presented.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group BHE-_Z——F+-A=+—HBIEFE"
made sales to one customer of RMB362,155,000 AEEM—BEFHEE AREKI362,155000
(2010: Two customers of RMB246,802,000 and T ZE—ZF: MBRBFPOIAARE
RMB272,563,000, respectively), which exceeded 10% 246,802,000t X A R#272,563,0007T) * i
of the Group’s total revenue for the year. HAEBEFRAWKZEAI10% °
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Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents Wt - MEIAEEMNEXETE  BRAEEYMH
the net invoiced value of goods sold. An analysis of FEREE AENRE - HWARZR® S
revenue, other income and gains is as follows: T
2010
—T-TF
RMB’000
ARBTT
Revenue Weas
Sale of goods HEED 2,116,871
Other income and gains HAUA KMz
Rental income el 20
Bank interest income HRITA B AR 2,706
Government grants XA 6 B 14,506
Sale of scrap materials SHE R 2,812
Fair value gains from equity  Z AR EEFFAERZN
investments carried at fair &R E A BEWER
value through profit or loss 275
Exchange gain, net b H e - JFEE =
Others Hfth 2,056
22,375
Various government grants represented cash payments SR FmEL T S S L T AE
and subsidies by the local finance bureau to the Group M4 2 IE R EEL - UASENIS S & i Al
as an encouragement to its investment and technological o 14 A5 A S 4 B O o R AR S B Bk R
innovation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or EIF o

contingencies relating to such subsidies.
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The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging:

Cost of inventories sold

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’
remuneration as set out
in note 9):

Wages and salaries
Performance related bonuses
Equity-settled share

option expenses
Retirement benefit

scheme contributions

Research and development costs

Fair value loss from equity
investments carried at
fair value through profit or loss*

Auditors’ remuneration

Transaction expenses for offering
and listing of shares

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (note 15)

Amortisation of prepaid land
lease payments (note 16)

Amortisation of intangible
assets™ (note 17)

(Reversal of impairment)/
Impairment of trade
receivables (note 21)

Minimum lease payments
under operating leases

Exchange (gains)/losses, net

Loss /(Gain) on disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment

EERAFX

E&7
(BREMZMENEEME):

FMNTE
BRERTEAT

DAz 4 BB AR I S

RIRERIEH B

P A

0 B ABRORERE
A RESBEE

ZEET N &
B BEER M2
RHHAX

WE - BB MREBITE

(FizE15)

TANS L3 AE & R 8

(K17£16)
T A B
(FH5£E17)

B RWFIA (rfE

BE) RE
(Kt7£E21)

REHE THRE

HER

B (W) BB

. FH

BREWE « BFEK&ZRFHRE

MEE . (Was)

31 December 2011

—ET——%+=ZA=+—H

AEENTADG N EMBEATIRB R E

2010
“E-FF

RMB’000
AR®ETTT

1,440,799

182,450
586

6,830

7,652
197,518

16,501

1,445
16,871
42,100

1,573

372

3,786

4,832
7,493

(33)

BrEBEMERAR | —T——FFR



Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=+—H

7. PfOfit Before TEIX (continued)

The fair value loss from equity investment carried at fair
value through profit or loss is included in “Other expenses”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
* The amortisation of intangible assets is included in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

8. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

A i i ] c42)

* o R B FH AR A B B B O Fu B (B 5
B e 48 10 A5 A A T i A 7 P T A B
3]

o TR R RS LS TE AR S R T AR R P Y
[FTHB ] -

BB A
PSR AT -

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT | ARBTT

Interest on bank borrowings  R1T{EEFIE 41,872 17,293
Interest arising from
discounted bills MIREBEENFE 4,090 4,912
45,962 22,205
Less: Interest capitalised B BEEREFE (16,834) -
29,128 22,205
9. Directors’ Remuneration =4
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant B¢ FTTIB AR E S A T ES B 161 1EE
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong EoEEENMOSENT

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
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Fees we
Salaries, allowances e EER K
and benefits in kind EYEF

Performance related bonuses* 4& & s fE AT

Equity-settled share
option expenses™
Retirement benefit

NS E R
PR S
BRI E

scheme contributions HR

*k

One executive director of the Company is entitled to bonus
payment which is determined at a percentage to the profit
after tax of the Group.

During the years 2010 and 2011, two executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors were
respectively granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under respectively the pre-IPO share
option scheme and Share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 31. The fair value
of such options which has been recognised in profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is included in the
above directors’ remuneration disclosure.

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

2010
—E-FF
RMB’000
AREETIT

51

1,427
586

377

15
2,456

* AR T — 4 AT B R AR A 4R R
i A 2 T 43 LR e 2 B AL -

o DR ERER IR EER S AT
o = 40 B 5L IR AT o DKL e AR AR
PR 22 RS T 20 AR 48 A 4 W) U B
YR T 22 I T ) i IR A ) 14 4 i
RE S HOE — DR HUR BT REST o 5% 4 IR
T 2 % SO B LA B Jod 00 o 7 48 i % o
we o AR H R E  MRE —F 4
+ A = H R A A S R R
AZER > BRt A ECGERMESEE T

FARBILFATEEXNZHEE
wmr
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$Uh 5 kA M ik

31 December 2011
—F——#+-A=t+-8

R R - L
9. Directors Remuneration (continued) 9. T HME
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BSLIEFATEDS (@)
(continued)
Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances Performance settled benefit
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e 2R NERLEE BANER

g BNEN AXAaRA  BRERx  SEHR HMeE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®BTR  AREBTR ARE®TR AR®TR ARMTn ARETx

2011 b3

Independent BUFHTEE :

non-executive

directors:

Mr. An Wenbin B K E 100 - - 15 - 115
Mr. Liu Yangsheng ~ 2IFB4 %4 100 - - 15 - 115
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan  ETMESLE 100 - - 15 - 115

300 - - 45 - 345
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Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

oo 2R

ik EMEN
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETE

2010 “2-%F

Independent BUFHTEE -

non-executive

directors:

Mr. An Wenbin T 17
Mr. Liu Yangsheng ~ ZIBE%A 17
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan  E ML E 17

51

During the year 2011, all the three independent
directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of
which are set out in note 31. The fair value of
such options which has been recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosure.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year( 2010: Nil).

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

Equity-  Retirement

Performance settled benefit
related  share option scheme Total
bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration

WEEEE  RINEN

RRBEL BRERx  HEER EMeR
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR

—E—FEAN MA=RBIEENR
H A AN S B 2 IR X R A A
HAE—SHBHNMES - ZFBARE
ZARBEEREBMEERARTE
R UYRREEEE  MBE—T——
F+-A=+T—RLFEEHBEHREF
PIEt AZ 28 ERfALXEEME T
B

F I E) B IETTE B S E A
S(ZT—TF : &) -
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31 December 2011
—F——%t+=-A=+—H

9. Directors Remuneration (continued) 9. =M% )
(b) Executive directors (b) HATESH
Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances Performance settled benefit
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fee in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e 2ZHR NEHEE BB

i BUEA AREaRA  BREREx B FWEER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR  AR®TR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR

2011 —8--f
Executive directors: ~ #/72% -
Mr. Dong Li Yl - 550 - - 11 561
Ms. Zhao Huan HERT - 319 - 410 7 736
Mr. Philip Armstrong ~ Philip Armstrong

Noznesky Noznesky2L & - 798 909 359 - 2,066

- 1,667 909 769 18 3,363

2010 —Z-%F
Executive directors: ~ #{7Z% :
Mr. Dong Li Yk = 461 - - 10 471
Ms. Zhao Huan HERT - 171 - 230 5 406
Mr. Philip Armstrong  Philip Armstrong

Noznesky Noznesky7&4 - 795 536 147 - 1,628

- 1,427 536 377 15 2,405

There was no arrangement under which a director HEZT—F+_A=+—HIEFE ' %
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration M ABEENERRERETAMES L
during the year ended 31 December 2011 and ZHE ANEBNEREE S NERMESES
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the IAZRE B s A AN 5 B B A 42 8 ol BE IS 9
directors as an inducement to join or upon HE o
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.
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The five highest paid employees during the year
included two (2010: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining three (2010: three)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are
as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e RMEEDETR
benefits in kind

Equity-settled share
option expenses

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

AR A B B A s

BIRERFT BT

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is
as follows:

Nil to RMB1,000,000 T E ARH1,000,0007T

During the year, no highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments and no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the non-director, highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

FALEESFHERT HPma (=T —
TE: MB)RES - HFMFBERN LM
HOFR - EBR=HR(ZFT—FTF: =ZFR)¥F
EERaFMER 2FHMFBIT

2010
—ET—FF

RMB’000
AREFIT

1,499

644

2,152

FHE T RENEEESSHOER AK
o -

2010
—E-FF

RAFE - EECARSFHMALHEXA
ERELAME  ARETEAFEZES
AL HEMB SR IARSE B0
AR E B 6 SRR SR RE B AV 1B -
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The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income
tax in this jurisdiction.

Leoch Battery Corp incorporated in the United States
was not subject to income tax for the period from 1
January 2007 to 31 May 2010 as it made an election
to be treated as a small business corporation (“S
corporation”) for the United States federal income tax
purpose. In general, a U.S. domestic corporation is
eligible to make an S corporation election if it does
not have more than 100 shareholders, does not have
shareholder who is not an individual, does not have
a non-resident as a shareholder, and does not have
more than one class of stock. During the above period,
the subsidiary is an eligible entity for an S corporation
election as it is a U.S. domestic corporation that has
only a single U.S. citizen shareholder. Moreover, the
subsidiary has only one class of stock. S corporations
are corporations that elect to pass corporate income,
losses, deductions and credit through to their
shareholders for federal tax purposes. As such, the
subsidiary was not subject to corporate level tax in
the United States, except for certain built-in gains and
passive income. Since 1 June 2010, the subsidiary was
no longer qualified as an S corporation and has been
subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is in
the range of 15%~35% regarding taxable income.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax
as such subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the British Virgin Islands.
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AR EARAEERE A REREREED
A B R R R A 0 RS B
B8 -

REFSHSNRIEARL - NRARHEAR
ZL AR EBERBMERPASH o

7 35 Bl 5 i AX 32 B9 Leoch Battery Corpit 3=
A PTIS T MR B AR SN EQT( /)
) BEA=ZFET+tF—A—BRE=Z
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W - BB - MRRIERERERG
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The provision for Hong Kong current tax is based on
the statutory rate of 16.5% of the assessable profits
of the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, i.e.
Leoch Power Supply and Leoch Battery Company. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made by
Kinetic Growth as it did not carry on any business in
Hong Kong and had no assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong during the year. The operations
of Kinetic Growth were carried out in the PRC by the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group. Such arrangement
may have PRC tax exposures. The relevant potential
PRC income tax provision has been recognised by the
Group by way of allocating the profits of Kinetic Growth
to the respective PRC subsidiaries based on the total
cost of goods purchased by Kinetic Growth from each
PRC subsidiaries. The Group is in the process of
moving Kinetic Growth’s operation gradually to Leoch
Battery Pte. The Singapore authority has approved
Leoch Battery Pte’s application for the Grobal Trader
Programme status on 2 August 2011. The provision
for Leoch Singapore Pte’s current income tax is based
on the tax rate of 10% .

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group as determined in accordance with the new
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in PRC which are
charged for tax at preferential rates.

In accordance with the relevant income tax laws and
regulations of the PRC for manufacturing enterprises,
Anhui Leoch Battery and Zhaoging Leoch were
exempted from corporate income tax (“CIT”) for first
two years of operation and were entitled to a 50%
reduction in the PRC CIT for the subsequent three
years (“CIT Exemption”). The year ended 31 December
2011 was the forth year for Anhui Leoch Battery and
Zhaoqing Leoch.

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

BB BN RE RREREE ML
HF BB A &) - BD¥E 4 B )R Kleoch Battery
Companyf) J& 55 Bt @ )+ 325 E B % 16.5%
FTE c AR ERE BB EMER
BRAFE NI ER DB E LRI E
REEF - METERDRESFESHEE -
BIENEBDBASENTERBARESD
Bl e - sz EFRHEF AL g E e BB %
b o REBEREERS KT BINE R BEK
BEMWAEKA  RETBRNERR S &
EeymA - EAREREERRMEHRE
#eo REBIEZR P K EEREBE Fleoch
Battery Pte c ST E RN ——F 1\ A
— B#t/Leoch Battery Pte GRS 51
AT RS © Leoch Singapore PteBl1HAFT{S
Bt TR T R10% TR R o

BRAKRBRFTENE THEBRRENKEES
Sh - REIRH PR SBB B T RIE P BB X
BRER-_ZZNF-A - HEHSERE
) ¥ 7 5= [ B R AR50 ) LA 25 % BV TE M 2

Ny
Al °

RIEBARECFNEBTBEMAEHAG R
B ZRETEMREEE TR G EER
FEEMFERLBNECEMSHR(EEM
BB ARER=FERETEEEMS
B50% ([EXMBEHRR]) BE-F—
— S+ A=t HLFEALAELED
MEEELTFNFZELEMSTRRENE
o
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Pursuant to the transitional arrangement under the
new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the income tax
rate applicable to Shenzhen Leoch will be gradually
increased from the rate of 18% to the unified rate of
25% over five years commencing from year 2008.
Meanwhile, Dongguan Leoch, another PRC subsidiary,
was recognised as a high-tech enterprise by the PRC
tax authority in 2011 with an effective period of three
years from year 2011 to year 2013 and was entitled to
a 15% CIT rate from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013. And Jiangsu Leoch, another PRC subsidiary,
was recognised as a high-tech enterprise by the PRC
tax authority in 2011 with an effective period of one
year, i.e. year 2011, was entitled to a 15% CIT rate
for year 2011.

The major components of income tax charge/credit
for the year are as follows:

Group: REE -

Current — PRC BNEARRIE —
Current — Hong Kong BVERFEIE — B
Current — Singapore RNEARTE — ¥ N3
Current — US BNEARRIE — 2B
Deferred tax (note 29) EERTE (FE29)

Total tax charge for the year FRFEEF S %8
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REHMPECEMASERENBEERZS - &
ARRYELOAEREEN T N\FiL
FHE) TR B 2 H18%IE £25%H #t — B
o HIEFER  Z—KPEMBARRTE
TR - —FRTEHRGERERR S
BEExE BUFHH_T——FEE_F
—=FIF=F MHT-——F—H—He
E_T—=F+_A=+—HHBEMREMH
K/15% - m—RKPBEMBRBIHELIR
- —FEFTERBEREA/FHRX
¥ ARFHRA-_ZE——F—F W_Z
——FHEEAEHER15%

REFETENEEMER S RRWT

2010
—E-EF
RMB’000
ARETIT

42,133
793

(716)

42,210



A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable
to profit before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled (i.e., PRC) to the tax
expense at effective tax rates are as follows :

Profit before tax AT A

Applicable tax rate TR E E WA R
of the Group

Tax at the applicable tax rate 1%i#E A& Kt E MR IE

Tax concession for ATHBRARMNBBES
certain subsidiaries

Income not subject to tax N

Expenses not deductible AR X
for tax

Tax losses not recognised RERBIBEGE

Others Eh

Tax charge at the Group’s EASEERMEGTERN
effective rate MIBRAX

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2011 includes
a loss of RMB40,534,000 (2010: RMB23,821,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (note 33(b)).

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

AR BATRF AT AR B SR A A AR A
AEHHEA R A ERR (R E) 1%
FE 4 2 B I S 31 M0 BB S O R
W

2010
—E-EF

RMB’000
ARETIT

299,720

25%
74,930

(39,398)
(934)

8,102

(490)

42,210

BHE_ZT——4F+_-_A=+—B8BIt#HF
B BRARBEAEAEBGEEERENBEA
R #40,584,000c( Z 2 —ZTF: AR
23,821,0007T ) K E51E - B R AR 7] B 75 5
FIEH R (KI3E33(b)) °

A
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F H — G AR3.3% (L
—E-FFH)

R — B .67
“E-FF )

Interim — 3.3 HK cents
(2010: Nil) per share

Final — 1.6 HK cents
(2010: Nil) per share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The dividends paid by the Company’s subsidiaries to its
then shareholders during the year ended 31 December
2010 were approximately RMB147,655,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,333,334,000
(2010: 1,041,666,750) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
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2010
—E-EF
RMB’000
ARETIT

BOR R B SR AN R B BRI B fE A RA
FARE LHER - TAEE -

ARANBAARBE-S—BF+=A=
AU EERES ORI OB 05
AE¥147,655,0007T °

EREABNESENZARA LT RER
BEABESENRFARNE ZFTRMD MNE
- 5 $11,333,334,0000%( = & — & %F :
1,041,666,7500% ) iR h AEAEETE -

BREERN SR DRANR EBEATA
ABIERENAELESE - sHEMANEER
EFHBEFAECHTROBE (RAE
BEREABMAMAERR) - ARBRERRER
RERETEZHAETE N L RRIL Kk
A B E T RIT T AR IIE O -



14. Earnings Per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Company (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per
share are based on:

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

14. A7 w) 5 50 HE 1 1 A A e
f5 45 B 2 A )

AEEREANEERNNEKENT

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Earnings B AR®T T ARETT
Profit attributable to ordinary FBRFtEFREARK
equity holders of the HERF 2 A QF
Company, used in the LBEREAA
basic and diluted earnings &A% F
per share 283,620 257,510
Number Number
of shares of shares
RAEE iegrn-4=
2011 2010
Shares % 13 —E——F —E-FTF

Weighted average number of RNt E &K

ordinary shares in issue BEXRBZEA
during the year used in the — B2{7¥ @A
basic earnings per share plikE RSl

calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted #5822 — @A

average number of ordinary  ANEFHEL
shares:
Share options HE A i

1,333,334,000 |1,041,666,750

24,899,484 15,942,500

1,358,233,484 |1,057,609,250
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31 December 2011

—ET—%+=ZA=+—H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. ¥13€ ~ Ws Kk

Group
AL
Tooling
Plant and Office Motor and Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BT BEREE BLERE RE IAR®E  EEIR @zt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%ETT ARET:R
Cost: R
At 31 December 2010 and ~ RZZ-T4+ZA
1 January 2011 =t-Ak=%
——%—-f-A 223,339 258,582 15,762 15,308 45,423 112,179 670,628
Additions R 25,262 192,171 7,362 8,918 63,971 479,961 777,645
Transfers A 15,653 05,415 623 774 510 (82,975) -
Disposals RE - (856) @) (1297) @80)  (,100)  (7.775)
Exchange realignment ERAE (672) - 1) - - (126) (799)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=1-H 263,632 515,312 23,694 23,698 109,424 503,939 1,439,699
Accumulated depreciation 2 E
and impairment: RAfE
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FE12A
and 1 January 2011 =t-Ak=%
——E-F-B  (26380)  (93905)  (1115)  (6754)  (15545) - (149,699)
Depreciation charge ERfEH
for the year (10079)  (B1724)  (3733)  (352)  (12829) - [61887)
Disposals BE - 405 9 799 318 - 1,531
Exchange realignment B g% 37 - - - - - 37
At 31 December 2011 R_F-——F
+oB=+-F  (36422)  (125204)  (10839)  (©477)  (28,056) - 10,018)
Net carrying amount; REHE -
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
+-R=1-H 227,210 390,088 12,855 14,221 81,368 503,939 1,229,681
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Cost:
At 31 December 2009 and
1 January 2010

Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2010

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
At 31 December 2009
and 1 January 2010

Depreciation charge
for the year

Disposals

At 31 December 2010

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2010

At 31

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR
B -
RZZENETZR

=t-BR-%

—S5-f-H 218,722 195,121
bEp 5,607 64,219
25 195 735
BE (1,119) (1,493
A% (16) =
RZZ-%%

+-A=1+-H 223,389 258,582

ZRNE
RiAfE :
RZZENFTZR

=t-Ak=%

—TF-f-A (17,086) (74,187)
ERfESH

0333)  (20,443)
RE 39 725
RZZ-%%
+-A=1+-H (26,380) (93,905)
EEOFE
eSS
+-A=1+-H 197,009 164,677

December 2011, certain of the Group’s

buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB292,762,000 (2010:
RMB258,260,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of
pledged assets, please refer to note 34.

RMB'000
ARBTT

9,938
5,864

(40)

15,752

(4,363)
(2,773)

21

(7,115)

8,637

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
1471 38,046 3497 476,795
4128 8320 109612 197,749

- - (930) -
(296) (952) - (3.900)
- - - (16)

15308 45423 112179 670,628
0997)  (8575) - (109,208)
0029) (7522 - {42,100)
) 552 - 1,609
6,754)  (15,545) - (149,699
8549 20878 112179 520,929

R-ZT——F+_A=+—H  A&EEET
BEHANRE292,762,00070( — T —ZT4F :
AE#258,260,0007T ) 2 & THE ks 2
BRERASEER —MRIBITRE 2 FER -
R EEFISHE LM T34 -

BrEBEMERAR | —T——FFR



31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

As at the date of this report, the Group has not obtained
certificates of real estate ownership from the relevant
PRC government authorities for certain buildings with
a carrying amount of RMB22,158,000 at 31 December
2011(2010: RMB1,629,000). Management is in the
process of obtaining these certificates. Until obtaining
the certificates, the Group has no right to assign or
pledge these buildings.

At cost: TR
At beginning of year REL]
Additions R
At end of year RER

Accumulated amortisation: RIE#
At beginning of year RE)
Charge for the year FRLH
At end of year RER

Net book amount: IREDFE :
At end of year RER

Less: current portion included & : ZI AFEfT71E

in prepayments, A& R H b EUGRIE
deposits and other B BN EREE 5
receivables (note 22) (FfzE22)
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RARERS  AEER_ZT—F+=A
=+ —HEEEARK22,158,0007L(=ZF—
TF : AR¥1,629,0007T) B & T HEL &
BREEATRBNBIIETEHERSE - &
BEFHBENZEREE BEENEZEE
E2H AEEEEERSERLEETF -

2010
—E-FTF

RMB’000
ARETT

46,987

17,019

64,006

3,601
1,573

5,174

58,832

(925)

57,907



The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and
is held under a long term lease.

At 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB10,696,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB6,508,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34).

As at the date of this report, the Group had not obtained
certificates of the right of using from the relevant of
PRC government authorities for certain lands with a
carrying amount of RMB14,456,000 at 31 December
2011(2010: Nil). Management is in the process of
obtaining these certificates.

Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 RZET—FF—H—H
Additions BN
Disposal BRE
At 1 January 2011 WZZT——F—H—H
Additions BN
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+=HA="1—
Accumulated amortisation: ZFE#EH ¢
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FF—H—H
Charge for the year FAZ M
Disposal BRE
At 1 January 2011 R—Z——F—H—H

Charge for the year
At 31 December 2011

Net book amount: BREFE

At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2011

R_F——%+-fA=1—8H

W-F-FF+-A=+—H
R=F——F+=A=+—H

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

HHEELMURTERE E—EB&H
GEROIY

R_E——F+-_A=+—8 A£EHET
TEA T E AR EE 4 A R 10,696,000
T(—E—ZTFE+-_A=+—H: AR%
6,508,0007T ) B LB RMITEER - FIR1T
MASERERE (H5334) ©

RARERH  AEBRARNR -_T——F
+ZA=+—BREERA K 14,456,000
T ZF—FF: B)NET L HERFHEE
BRI AR - EREEETH
MBREAEE -

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T ARETT
3,291 — 3,291
1,077 — 1,077
(44) - (44)
4,324 — 4,324
1,168 25,031 26,199
5,492 25,031 30,523
(572) — (572)
(372) — 372)

21 — 21

(923) — (923)
(469) — (469)
(1,392) - (1,392)
3,401 — 3,401
4,100 25,031 29,131
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Notes to the Financial Statements

VA it % Y ik

31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=+—H

18. Investments in Subsidiaries

18. M )& 2~ mli &

Company
PN

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFTT
Unlisted shares, at cost LTI - LR 337,830 337,830
Advances to subsidiaries B EH B AT 1,277,639 671,741
1,615,469 1,009,571

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are listed in
note 4 above.

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included in
the investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

19. Investments In Associates

TEMNBRATNFER EXMF4Z27 -

FIAR S B2 BB R R SRR M B A AR
B EER  REREREERY -

19. g A mlE

Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
Share of net assets EhEEFE 5,442 =
5,442 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 IHVGStmentS In Associates (continued) 19

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=t+—H

Y WA= o
Wt 5 N\ & ()
FTEBENRNFBOT ¢

Percentage of

Ownership
Particulars Place of interest
of issued incorporation/  Attributable to Principal
Name shares held registration the Group activities
rEEELRERE
=L FRERTROFE BRI /St ‘I TEXB
MSB Manufacturing Ordinary shares Malaysia 30% Assembling and
Sdn.Bhd.* of RM | each trading of batteries
FREE1FT BSRATE 30% HEREEEM
GOSN
LEOCH ACCUPOWER  Ordinary shares Malaysia 40% Assembling and
(M) SDN. BHD.* of RM | each trading of batteries
BREBIET SRATE 40% HEREEE)
)RR

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held
through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from
their management accounts or financial statements:

* Sl JF o A v 22 KB RS T K A
BT kA AR LA € B S T A

AEERBRE2EMBRRAERZ QAT
H&O

TREARFEAREBE A RNEIERRE
KM BRROPFERE -

2011

—_E——fF

RMB’000

AR® T

Assets BE 19,877
Liabilities afE 10,989
Revenues g 30,862
Profit S Kl 408

BLEBEMERAT | —T——FFRK
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31 December 2011
—F——%t=-A=t+—H

. yao
20. Inventories 20. 78
Group
rEEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®ET T
Raw materials =& 129,895 175,940
Work in progress TEE M 633,800 285,789
Finished goods K m 227,267 225,925
990,962 687,654

21. Trade and Bills Receivables

21. & 5

ST 2 RS SR 45

Group

AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 789,445 572,561
Bills receivables e IE 36,569 33,264
Less: Impairment provision & : J{E B (7,780) (9,350)
818,234 596,475
Less: Non-current portion B FERNHAED S (14,115) (11,335)
804,119 585,140

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
The credit period of individual customers is considered
on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers are
required to make partial payment before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and closely monitors
them to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables of RMB30,433,000 were under short term
credit insurance and RMB24,208,000 under letters
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of credit. Besides that, the Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had pledged
certain trade and bills receivables amounting to
RMB75,582,000 (2010: RMB2,455,000) to banks
with recourse in exchange for cash. The proceeds
from pledging the trade and bills receivables of
RMB51,003,000 (2010: RMB2,455,000) were
accounted for as collateralised bank advances until
the bills were collected or the Group made good of
any losses incurred by the banks (note 28).

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 based

on the invoice date, net of provisions, is as follows:

Outstanding balances with ages:

Within 90 days 90HWA

91 to 180 days 912180H
181 to 365 days 181£365H
1 to 2 years 1524
Over 2 years 2F DA E

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

MR - O AREMERZEERT BT
MEA R EREMEERI T ERE - EHE
WHRIBERTET S ©

R_T——F+-_A=+—8 AEEMEE
TERETEEERNE S EBRIERE
WEE - 858 ARKT?5582,000L(=F
—ZFF: AR ¥24550007T ) ' LA K #IR
&  MAEZEBFIEREREEMEKE
AR #51,003,000t( ZFE—FF : AR
2,455,0007T) HAIER M IRRITBK - EE
ZERBEELYIASERMRITEENT
& 1B A& LE (F13E28) °

TREIIR -_ZF-—FF+ _HA=+—HE—
T——F+T_A=t—HEZFERKRFIAKE
WRIRRHZE ORERR) WRRE DT

ARERTEA T B R EIB A RR -

2010
—E-FTF
RMB’000
ARET T

444,047
88,472
44,545
17,992

1,419

596,475
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31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January 2011 RZZE——%—H—H
Impairment losses ERBEERE
recognised (note 7) (MF5E7)
Amount written off as {ERBARBEULEIFRIA
uncollectible EHE 58
Impairment losses reversed — #EIEE B
(note 7) (H3E7)
At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivable is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of RMB7,780,000 (2010:
RMB9,350,000) with a carrying amount before provision
of RMB16,096,000 ( 2010: RMB12,997,000).

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
relate to individual customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables that are not expected
to be recoverable. These balances were fully provided
for. The bills receivables are due to mature within 180
days from 31 December 2011.
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B 5 RUG IR ER B ESHHINWT

2010
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARET T

6,780

4,737

(1,216)

(951)

9,350

LB SR ERERERERERER
5 IR F B B AR 7,780,000 (=& —
T . AR¥0,350,0007T) @ EEAIREE
BARE16,096,000L(ZE—ZF : AR
#12,997,0007T) °

it E 5 IERRE R & EE R R
EREFERE - WZEERRFIETEHRT AR
B - WEEL2EEE - BREBER_T—
—F+_-_HA=+—H#E: 1808 REIH -



An analysis of trade and bills receivables that were not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired T #HIt T {E
Past due over 1 year but B HARER A —FERE
not impaired

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors believe that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
pledged as security for interest-bearing bank loans
granted to the Group amounted to RMB75,582,000
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB2,455,000) (note
34).

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

PRSI BE N B 5 e WA & E W
SBEOMWT

2010
—E—ZF
RMB’000
AREETIT

595,056

1,419

596,475

SR 20 TS 08 0 RO o T 3 R 40
RENS AR -

SR MEREENERRIATES ZERE
EERHRZLHENBULEFLAR - BHNE
EERYEEANEH RERDATAZERK
B REBELR  EFHELELEHRZ
SR EHIRERE -

R_TE——F+-_A=+—8 BiEFEA
REEFEGSTERITEFERCE ZERHK
H R EWRESREE R A RK75,582,000
T(ZF —F F: AR ®2,455,0007T )
(MI5E34) ©
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31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=+—H

22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22. T AT AKIE ~ 5] 4 B Ho At JE

Receivables i 2k 1A
Group Company
rEE ARTF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——fF —FFF —F——F —FFF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT ARBT T ARETT

Prepayments TER OB 130,419 162,700 - =
Prepaid land lease FBff tinFA &

payments (note 16)  (F{7£16) 1,338 925 - -
Interest receivables FEUFI . 9,094 1,629 9,094 =
Deposits and other & K EHAb

receivables JE U F0E 18,583 9,754 - 1,629

159,434 175,008 9,094 1,629

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. Pt BESEAEASRME o it AT EIE
The financial assets included in the above balances M4 B & BE BE D 4 B HE K ED 4R a9 FE R 2R 1B
relate to receivables for which there was no recent B o

history of default.

23. Equity Investments at Fair Value 3. %N B (H B S A 18 #8
Through Profit or Loss 1) A A
Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Listed equity investments, AR E

at market value: BThE

Hong Kong BE 1,262 1,480
The above equity investments at 31 December 2011 N-ZTE——F+-A=+—B 2z Lg%
were classified as held for trading. ENEAFBUEHE -
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24. Cash and Bank Balances and Time

Notes to the Financial Statements

oA ik o5 B ik

31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=t+—H

24. B 5 K SR AT %5 85 DL LE

. > &,
Deposits 17K
Group Company
AEE VN
2011 2010 2011 2010
= “F-%F = “E-%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR%TR ARETTT
Cash and bank balances R RBITER 120,185 200,948 249 118
Time deposits THER 622,177 766,085 622,177 766,085
742,362 967,033 622,426 766,203
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing 3 : B 3taT BIRTT
bank borrowings fEEHH (591,377) (1,178) (591,377) =
Pledged for bills payables ERENREER (16,608) (59,063) - -
Pledged for letters of credit B FLEREEE (32,506) (7,070) = =
Time deposits with terms FHRIB3E A &
over 3 months EHER (28,500) (721,075) (28,500) (721,075)
(668,991) (788,386) (619,877) (721,075)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 73,371 178,647 2,549 45,128
Denominated in RMB WAREHE 726,065 909,368 622,230 766,115
Denominated in US$ PASETLEHE 10,833 30,344 13 =
Denominated in HK$ PAS TTETE 1,778 19,843 183 88
Denominated in EUR PABLTETE 3,104 6,496 - =
Denominated in SG$ DA IS LEHE 582 982 - =
742,362 967,033 622,426 766,203

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB726,065,000 (2010: RMB909,368,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RBEIR  AEBUARESENRE R
IRITRE R E AR¥726,065,000T( —F—F
F: AR#909,368,0007T) - ARBEREH
B LIRVESNEE - SR - IR IR B HNE B Il 1K
Bl 4EE EERMNEEERTE  AEEE
&S BRERITH AR SIBEINE DL
FTONE T o
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31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=+—H

24. Cash and Bank Balances and Time
Deposits (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposits rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

25. Trade and Bills Payables

24. Bl 5 K sRAT & B A K E

Xk
T ()

FRIITORESRE BRITERA R EH
ERRMAE - EHEHERAER—KRE
ZEAZEHR(RFAKRENNSRSF
B ) RIZZ 52 B BT SR RERERA B, o $RAT
EHREEREREFATRERRCENE

SEEERLT -

25. 5 5y MEAT R IE S A SR 4

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®ET T
Trade payables =0 ANEeE 216,174 100,378
Bills payables ANEY 331,685 245,072
547,859 345,450
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25 Trade and BIHS Payables (continued) 25

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

oA it o B ik

31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=t+—H

B T ME A SE I A 2R R

(%

RBERR  BHENFBARENREIZE
SEBMEREDITT -

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within 90 days 90H N 329,703 196,091
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 195,765 83,092
181 to 365 days 181£2365H 14,247 58,868
110 2 years 15226 1,893 1,734
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 955 923
Over 3 years FRIBIE 5,296 4,742
547,859 345,450

Pledged assets for bills payables are listed in note

FENRIRM B EER TXXMFE3427

34 below.
Other Payables and Accruals 26. HoAth FEAT I Je et 2
Group Company
ALE LN
2011 2010 2011 2010
= —TTF = “TTF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT ARET R ARETFT
Payables for purchase of ~ BEW%  HE
items of property, plant REEHEH
and equipment FERS5R 46,508 11,507 - =
Advances from customers ~ BFE[H 63,156 25,387 - -
Accrued expenses R 23,640 29,489 392 -
Accrued payroll [BEtTE 25,696 16,681 - -
Deferred government grants  JEFEHF frEh 28,787 43,493 - -
Provision for social insurance #&RB K
and retirement benefits RINEN B 48,242 27,203 - -
Others Hit 10,615 7,470 3 -
246,644 161,320 395 -

E+EBREMARAR
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31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

Amounts due from related parties FEUR R E A TR FIE

2010
—T-THF
RMB’000
ARET T
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle Co., Ltd. EERBESELFR AR 1,364
Shanghai Leoch Power Supply Co., Ltd. BB+ EREIFEEARAF 105
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd. #3357 e R T A R A 7 967
Shenzhen Marxon Power Supply Co., Ltd. F#IITERIEERERMAR A 2,370
Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd. EREABEH R ER AT -
4,806

Amounts due to related parties FETRAE A T HRUR
2010
—T-FF
RMB’000
AREET T
Dongguan Leoch Power Supply Co., Ltd. HEE+EREDBER AR 10,892
Leoch Holding Co., Ltd. Leoch Holding Co., Ltd. 32,558
Shenzhen Marshell Green Power Co., Ltd. JZIBERBESHE SRR A A 4,685
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd. #®JI|T 35 B R Rl R A 7] -
48,135

All balances in the year ended 31 December 2011 are
trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The related companies are
controlled by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company.

The details of the transactions with related parties are
disclosed in note 37.
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28. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

Notes to the Financial Statements

oA ik o5 B ik

31 December 2011
—F——%t+t=-A=t+—H

28. R ERATIEE

Group Company
A%H O
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--F “TFF “E--F 2
Maturity RMB'000  Maturity RMB'000  Maturity RMB'000  Maturity RMB'000
L) AE®TL 38 ARETL B ARETR 34 ARETT
Current k]
Interest-bearng bank ~ 3FERAEE
borrowings, secured BER 2012 689932 2011 336,296 2012 203 441 -
Interest-bearing bk~ FFEBAEE
borrowings, unsecured 4 -0 771878 - -
Collateralised bank epivil
advances, secured B 2012 5,003 2011 2455 - -
740,935 416,629 203 441 -
Non-current EE1L
Inferest-bearing bk~ FFEH(TEE
borrowings, secured BHR 2013 330,691 - 2013 330,691 -
330,691 - 330,691 -
Total 4 1,071,626 416,629 534,132 =
Dominated in RMB WAREGHE 512,878 396,146 - =
Dominated in US$ WETAE 371,498 20,483 354,178 -
Dominated in HKS AT E 187,250 - 179,954 -
1,071,626 416,629 534,132 -
Interest rates per annum : 1.00% 3.46% 1.00% N/A
t0 7.90% 10 5.8%% t0 1.75% N/A
R 1.00% 3.46% 1.00% NER
E7.90% £589% E1.75% R

The Group’s secured bank borrowings are secured by
the following pledge or guarantees:

()  pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value
of RMB 970,417,000 (31 December 2010: RMB
265,314,000) for the bank borrowings is disclosed
in note 34.

(i) cross guarantees executed by companies within
the Group.

A S Y A5 IR 1T A T8 B RS IR
SR -

0)

REBETEEFEANBEEARE

970,417,00070( ==

—FE+-A=+

—H : AR#265,314,0007T) H A £ E

BERKE34FE -

AEBAR BB EER
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31 December 2011
—F—%t=ZA=t—H

28. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 28. FFEERAT B )
(continued)
The balance is analysed as follows: BREEDATIAT ¢
Group Company
N3 NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--F —T-TF —E2—-f —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT ARET R ARETT

Bank loans and advances  AEBHHFITER

repayable: R
within one year —FR 740,935 416,629 203,441 -
In the second year F-F 330,091 - 330,691 -

1,071,626 416,629 534,132 =
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29. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Notes to the Financial Statements

YA 5 o B e
31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

29. B AEF IA

7A

1RSI T TH

»
==/

TRAFRELERBAEERABNEFER

Group
A5H
Provision for ~ Provision for Provision Loss available
impairment impairment of against  for offsetting
of trade property, plant obsolete against future Salary
receivables and equipment  inventories taxable profits payables Total
BARUTE % BER RERE  ARREH EHEE it
AERE REAERR fiF  ARERH
BHNER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETR
Gross deferred tax RZZ-T45-f-A
assets at 1 January BERE
2010 ZERE 330 1,298 - - - 1,628
Deferred tax credited ENERERN
(charged) to proftt or A/ (k)
loss during the year RIETEH R
(note 11) (P3k11) 163 (189 199 - - 173
Gross deferred tax RZZ-ZFT-A=1-R
assets at 31 December k=5—%-H-A
2010 and 1 January RETHEEERE
2011 493 1,109 199 - - 1,801
Deferred tax credited ENERERN
(charged) to proft or A/ (1)
loss during the year MELHE
(note 11) (BsE11) 261 1317 (199 3,300 2,135 6,814
Gross deferred tax RZB—FTZA=+-Af
assets at 31 December ELHRAELE
2011 754 2,426 - 3,300 2,13 8,615
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RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTRT AREBTT AREKETE

Gross deferred tax R-ZE—ZF
liabilities at —A—HEE
1 January 2010 MIRE REE 264 - 490 754

Deferred tax charged/ FREBERTNG,
(credited) to profit or (5T A) BUREFIIA

loss during the year (FF3E11)

(note 11) (53) - (490) (543)
Gross deferred tax RZE—FF+=H

liabilities at =t—RBAKk=Z

31 December 2010 ——F—H—HfN

and 1 January 2011 BLEHIEBGERE 211 - - 211

Deferred tax charged/ FREEBERTNG,
(credited) to profit or (T A) BUREFIIA

loss during the year (FF3E11)

(note 11) 211) 4,209 - 3,998
Gross deferred tax RZZE——%F+2AH

liabilities at = +—HARER

31 December 2011 THAEERE = 4,209 = 4,209
At 31 December 2011, no deferred tax has been R-_TE——F+_fF=+—H WEHRLE
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable T2 AP B K B 3% 2 O BT B 8 B A9 AR BEE Y & )
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding (BEMTBIRFTER ) BN A TEIRAT SRR
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland BERIE EZRA - ZSHBRAREITR
China. In the opinion of the directors, these subsidiaries BRI ESPEHE-_E——F+_A=1+—
will not distribute such earnings as of 31 December Bey&H - Bl Rt R BRETIE -

2011 in the foreseeable future and therefore, no deferred
tax has been provided thereof.
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31 December 2011
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: L
30. Share Capital 30. A
2011 2010
—E——F —T-FF
Authorised: SETE
10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares of f& AR EEO. 178 T
HK$0.1 each (HK$’000) RE@EE (FAT) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
1,333,334,000 ordinary 1,333,334,000/% &%
shares of HK$0.1 HEC. 1B TR ER
each (HK$’000) & (F%&7T) 133,333 188,388
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARKETT 114,267 114,267

During the year, the movements in authorised and

FAOEERBBRITRAESHIOT

issued share capital were as follows:

Number of
ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each

Nominal value of

FREEO.10/TH ordinary shares
LR E ERARNEE
HK$'000 RMB’000
THLT ARETR
Authorised: AT
On incorporation on 27 April 2010 RZE—T40A
o =21 1AV (i) 3,800,000 380 334
Increase in authorised share capital EINEERA (i 9,996,200,000 999,620 857,674
As at 31 December 2010 and 2011 RZE-ZTER=T
——%+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 858,008
Issued: B#T:
Issued and fully paid upon AR IEE BT RAR
incorporation (iif 1 - -
Capitalisation issue credited NRSES R M E AL 81T
as fully paid (iv) 999,999,999 100,000 85,700
Issuance of new shares BEEHFEERTHR
under the global offering v) 333,334,000 33,5818 28,567
As at 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZF+_A=+—H 1,333,334,000 188,358 114,267
As at 31 December 2011 RZE——&F+=A=+—H 1,333,334,000 133,333 114,267
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)

On incorporation of the Company, the authorised
share capital of the Company was HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10
each.

On 14 October 2010, the authorised share capital
of the Company was further increased from
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares to
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares through the creation of 9,996,200,000
additional Shares of HK$0.10 each.

The share capital of the Group represented the
issued and fully paid share capital of the the
Company on incorporation.

Pursuant to the resolution passed on 14 October
2010, an aggregate of 999,999,999 shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company were allotted and
issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$99,999,999.90
from the share premium account. Such allotment
and capitalisation were conditional on the share
premium account being credited as a result of the
issue of new shares to the public in connection
with the Company’s initial public offering (the
“IPO”) as detailed in (v) below.

In connection with the Company’s IPO,
333,334,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were
issued at a price of HK$5.35 per share for a total
cash consideration, before listing expenses, of
HK$1,783,336,900. Dealings of these shares on
the Stock Exchange commenced 16 November
2010.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

AR E)FEMAIEF - ANAE KA ERA
#380,00075 7T + 9 43,800,000/% & I
0.1078 TR I 5 ©

RZE—ZF+H+TMHAE - BBIEMN
9,996,200,000/% & f%0.107% T 2 I 17
KA A HY A TE BR AN 3380,0008 7T (9 74
3,800,0000% ) # — ##% %1,000,000,000
77t (9 410,000,000,0008% ) °

AREBBRATDIARRBREMRIZENE
BITRBURRRR

BE—ZT-—ZF+ATHBEBBERR
EE BBURRMNDEERFENMER
99,999,999.907 7T + A 1 Al At 2 K #&
77 #8 $£999,999,9908% % M 150.10/8
T2 - BIEREEARIASE - 1t
DB R E AR T H M A RFEITHAR M
AR RARRARERME @ BAR
ANER A AREE((HXRAREEDE
B AR TV

ERRFERARAEER  BERER
5.35/% JT 1Y {8 1% ¥ 17333,334,000%
BREEC10B LM AR D + AR LT
F X K 4231 € K (8 &1,783,336,9007%
TL e ZERBR T —ZTF+— A+~

BN AEE -



The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, approved by written resolutions of the
Company passed on 25 May 2010, are as follows:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to
the directors and employees (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares
representing approximately 4.5% of the total
issued share capital of the Company immediately
after completion of the global offering, taking no
account of the exercise of the over-allotment
option.

The subscription price in respect of each share
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
determined by the board of directors at its
discretion and set out in the relevant offer letters
provided that it should not be less than the
nominal value of the shares.

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

ARBEFERAFARENBREAZ(E
RAFRBEEMBRESE)  BEAYEA
SEHNRINEEFELERMNEEMALRM
REMEEE - BIRAREEEBER S/
EBERALTEBRARANEERAEENE
fiEE - BERAREEABREFEN_F
—ZEFERA-BER RIESTEHEIUERT
Sh - BRIGHZAE—BEERTF -

BR AR EABRAER B E R ERER
ARAR-_ZE-—TFRAA-_+ARBENHER
IRFRFLLAE - RERT ¢

BARARBERBREE I REHE T A
SEEARERANEZRREE (TR
SRR -

R AR B X QBB E AT AR AR AT 2l
ARERTERENRMDEE LREA
60,000,000/ % 7 * HEHERERERE
BE 2 IR E TR A (G RITEBREE R
REMBE BITIRABRELI4.5% ©

BRAFEERERET SR T ek
MRBE I HESSRANIGRE
T UHREBEAWER - BELR
PR EE
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After 28 October 2010, no further options will be RZE—ZFTF+A=-+N\BHE T8
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option BEEBRARAEERBARETSZEE
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of RO EMEMERE  BERAHEE
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain A AR RE 5T 21 B IS0 AL T AR A B
in full force and effect to the extent necessary to TRBMAFER - B 2 AT &Y
give effect to the exercise of any options granted EfIEE AR AE D AT AT R AR IR B IR A il 3%
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required & A IR B MR SR E M S 1717
in accordance with the provisions of the Pre- B MR=ZE—ZFF AT \HzZ
IPO Share Option Scheme, and options which AU RO B AR - S AR IR F RO BT
are granted on or before 28 October 2010 may 1RSRAEE T LATTIE ©

continue to be exercisable in accordance with
their terms of issue.
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Options granted on 1 June 2010 under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme can only be exercised

in the following manner:

Anytime during the 10 years after
the second anniversary of the
date of offer of the options (the
“Offer Date”)

REREZNERIELEH])

B F ZBF% T FAEAERE

Anytime during the 9 years after
the third anniversary of the
Offer Date

REL BN E = BFE
NEREAEE

Anytime during the 8 years after
the fourth anniversary of the
Offer Date

NEL BB EFE
J\E A AR B

Anytime during the 7 years after
the fifth anniversary of the
Offer Date

RELY BN FERBFE
+EREEE

25% of the total number
of options granted

ERHBREAH25%

25% of the total number

of options granted

B R BRI m25%

25% of the total number

of options granted

B R BB R m25%

25% of the total number

of options granted

B R BB Rm25%

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

REAXCHABEMEREAEIN-F
—ZTFENA - BREOBREEIRIA
THATUAITEE

Up to the date immediately before
the second anniversary of the
Offer Date

BEERERBORHM
FBRFMEARL

Up to the date immediately before
the third anniversary of the Offer
Date

BEXZEZNEHN
E=BRFRAERRL

Up to the date immediately before
the fourth anniversary of the Offer
Date

BEXZEZNAHN
FMBFREHRLE

Up to the date immediately before
the fifth anniversary of the Offer
Date

BEXZEZNAHN
ShEFHERRLE
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Options granted on 14 October 2010 under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme can only be

exercised in the following manner:

Anytime during the 10 years after
the first anniversary of the
Offer Date

NEXBENE —BF%
5 AR I

Anytime during the 9 years after
the second anniversary of the
Offer Date

RELBHEE BFE
NERE

Anytime during the 8 years after
the third anniversary of the
Offer Date

NEXNBHNE=BF%
NEREEE

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

EREBRERRMN1/3

1/3 of the total number of

options granted

EREBRERRMN1/3

1/3 of the total number of

options granted

EREBRERRMN1/3

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions
as may be specified in the offer letter in respect

of the grant of options.

Share options do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’

meetings.
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BREBERARBEBRESAEN_-F
—ZTFE+ATHBERLOBREER
AT T IATTE

Up to the date immediately before
the first anniversary of the Offer
Date

BEXZEZNEHN
E—BFAERRL

Up to the date immediately before
the second anniversary of the
Offer Date

BEXZEZNEHN
ERFREARL

Up to the date immediately before
the third anniversary of the Offer
Date

BEXZEZNEHN
E=BRFAERRL

TEREERAMEERBRE SR
RS B A T T R R Y 2 (S 1 P
BIIBA 2 51 R

RA® LRRAOER -



On 1 June 2010, an aggregate of 37,680,000
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme were issued to two directors of the
Company and 144 employees of the Group.
On 14 October 2010, another 1,500,000 share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Scheme were
issued to a key management personnel of the
Group. The exercise prices and exercise periods
of the Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at 31
December 2011 are as follows:

1,500,000 HK$5.07%& 7T
4,030,000 HK$0.2/& 7T
4,830,000 HK$0.48 7T
820,000 HK$0.67& 7T
2,650,000 HK$0.87% 7T
5,320,000 HK$1.08 7T

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

R-ZZE—ZFXA—H BARAN
MABEEERANEEMNI44% R B E1T
BRARABEENERETSIBETEH
37,680,000f7 fE X #E - R —_F — T F
TA+TMA  AEE—ZEXEBEBRE AL
BETERAARESAERETEIET
5% 5M 500,000 BERR#E - MZF ——
¢+ A=+—H8 ' WR{TEFRAHA

ERTBRERITEE RITE A MM
T:

14 October 2011 to 14 October 2021
~F-——%tAfmAE
- —%+A+WEH

1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—E——HFXA—H=ZE
—E-__F,A—H

1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—ET——FA—H=ZE
—E-_#,A—H

1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
_"*_i/\ﬂ Hx
:‘Ezzi/\ﬂ—a

1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—7_—5'5/\)% E'j:
;74;55'5/\)% El

1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

—ET——FA—H=ZE
—E - —FXA—H
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31 December 2011
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31. Share Option Schemes (continued) 31. B AT &
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) ERVUNE RS g S N

(f)  Exercise of options (continued)

(®

Exercise price

TTIEAEAR A (#E)

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE 1T{EHA
2,780,000 HK$1.28 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
= —EE/ N\ H El ==
—E-—F,XHA—H
3,940,000 HKS$1.48 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
= _f'f/ N\ H El ==
—E-_F,A—H
3,030,000 HK$1.6/8 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—= —QE/ N\ H El &
= ——EE/ N\ H El
4,880,000 HK$1.878 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
= —EE/ N\ H El ==
—E-—F,XHA—H
5,400,000 HK$2.07%8 7T 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022
—ET——FRA—HE
—E-_F,A—H
39,180,000
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Fair value of share options:

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

L

BRENAA(ERE

i

HK$ per share RMB RMB RMB

1 June 2010 “E-TFXA-H 37,680,000
14 October 2010  =E—Z4+H+MA 1,500,000
39,180,000

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options
granted was estimated as at the date of grant
by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers, using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Exercise price (HK$ per share) 1T{#E (EHET)
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHIREE (%)

Expected volatility (%) TEEIR R (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%) mRERAE (%)

Expected life of share options 78 HAEE A% #E &) 4F 7
(years) (%)

Weighted average share price R B HiA hitEF5
at grant date (HK$ per share)  BfE (BKET)

BRAET ARE ARE ARE

1.110 36,684,000 10,763,000 6,574,000
0.381 491,000 69,000 256,000

37,175,000 10,832,000 6,830,000

REMWBERAHRENERENAAE
B REOAHRBYEXSERME
Bhfh 2R TTEIPI AR AR RA AR
fEARAY - 3 IR th B AR P AR IR O i
ARG MAETTEE - TREIIRMZ
BRI B AR B

02-20 5.0
62-4; 49.2;r
3.64 212

10 10

1.667 1.600
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The expected life of the Pre-IPO Share Options is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility may not
necessarily reflect the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

At 31 December 2011, the Company had
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options for the
subscription of 389,180,000 shares under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 2.9% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding Pre-IPO
Share Options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 39,180,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of
HK$3,918,000 (equivalent to RMB3,175,000) and
share premium of HK$47,466,000 (equivalent
to RMB38,466,000), before related issuance
expenses.

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
by the written resolutions of all the shareholders of
the Company passed on 14 October 2010 for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible
persons for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Group and for such
other purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. Eligible persons of the Scheme include any
director or employee (whether full time or part time),
consultant or advisor of the Group who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed to or will
contribute to the Group.
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BRARBENBRENFERFIRY
R RERAMTTREEANIER - BHIK
BARV—ERREBRER

ERLBRENEBRFHLBERAAR
REEMNTER -

RZZE——F+=—A=+—8 ' £A2QF
BAEARTEE R AFEERERE - 7]
REBER A AARENERETSIET
39,180,000/ & 15 - HHE R A 2Q AR
EHMEEITRALN2.9% - IBRIBARQ
AR BIRAZEE - 2ETERTES
RARBERBRESEHEITANT
39,180,0008% B8 /M 3@ AR 15 + LA K B8
SN A% 753,918,000/ TL( M E R A R
3,175,0007T ) & & {7 % E47,466,0007%5
TL (S M AR #38,466,0007T ) (3B
MRAETRSZA) ©

ARBET-BEBREFE(EE ] &K
RAFERER-_Z—ZFF+ATHBEBEB
MEERBRUERRN  EEARLEE
EHERMIX TS HRAAEREN R ZAE
RATIRHEBHEE  IREFS TR
ENHMBN - AAENAEBALERES
SRRA/EHARYAK T HEEL TR
MAKETMESNES(ZRIFRE) B
AN



The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
as follows:

The Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part
time) of any member of the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting and
certain disclosure and reporting requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes,
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue at any
time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting and certain disclosure and
reporting requirements.

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

BRI T 2R T

B B R T AEBEAREA
AMEERES (THEBAIB) -

BYARRES TETHABREE
MR SRR A (B B A T A BEARAE -
BELIBEIENITESHOIE 1IN -
FEA+Z@ARRRFARRNEE
BRELIBLIRITES - HEFHEMA
SE A TR EERE - WiEBEARA A
FMEAR] R FE Y BE 7T AR 1D #90.1 % Sk B (B 8
5,000,000/ 7T (1R R K H B B A A
WIREMEE)E  IESLEEREXN
g EESREE - WAESTE TR
REAHRIRE

T8 AR E b RE AR 81 B A A %
FTMARITEZBRERITER A RE
Bih&m LREE - TEEBARAR
EAAIBS B BT D #8L230% » IMME
A+ —EAME  REFERTEUE
BERSEEZBRERNETRNZES
R AETAREOHRRARREHITR
N Z21% ° BB R 6l 2 EfE — P&
HZ B AR SRR N B A GHE
JE - WBSFE T RREHR -
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The subscription price of share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not be
less than the highest of () the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of
the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer
of an option or options.

The Scheme became effective on 16 November
2010, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from the date
of adoption of the Scheme by shareholders by
resolution at a general meeting.
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BREZRBERESTSRT - B1F
ERON R L EERE B ARRRROE
B P 2 W (B ¢ R (iR L B HIE
R85 B AR B I B R AT 2 ¥
Yo 8 ¢ i) A2 A A fp 2 EE (A&
BELE) BXBEREENRE(
AR¥1.00TAIRE -

£

TE+—HTRBER

BN =T —

Br BITESHSIBETAN - S B IRE R AR R
ASBBERBZREMNTE BHETER
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Options granted on 22 November 2011 under the BEBREAZNR_Z——F+—HA=
Share Option Scheme can only be exercised in TZHAREREREETIZATART
the following manner: LATTE -
Anytime during the 5 years from 1/3 of the total number of ~ Up to the date immediately
the Offer Date on or after options granted before 1 December 2012
1 December 2012
REHNAME_T—_F BR L ERERZMN/3 BEEEE-T——F
TZA—H¥Z & AFAEFAERE +ZA—BAEHARL
Anytime during the 5 years from 1/3 of the total number of  Up to the date immediately
the Offer Date on or after options granted before 1 December 2013
1 December 2013
REHNAME_T—=F BR L ERERZMN/3 BEEEE_T—=F
TZA—H¥Z & AFAEFAERE +ZA—BAEHARL
Anytime during the 5 years from 1/3 of the total number of  Up to the date immediately
the Offer Date on or after options granted before 1 December 2014
1 December 2014
REHRME _T—MF BR L ERERZMN1/3 BEEEE_T—UF
T2 A—H¥z & AFAEFAERHE +ZA—BAEHARL
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Any exercise of an option granted under the
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions
as may be specified in the offer letter in respect
of the grant of options.

Share options do not confer rights on the
holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

On 22 November 2011, an aggregate of
15,200,000 share options under the Share
Option Scheme were issued to 3 directors of
the Company and 205 employees of the Group.
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2011

TTERBBBAER R B ARE N
1T 10 B BB B0 2 4015 1 PR 51 B 22 1k F
RRZE o

PR B T A AMEAER - A=
BEREHNBRAEG LR -

R-ZT——F+—HA-+=-H  ALRQ
AN =REERAEER205% E B
ITHE IR MEET 8118 T~ & ££15,200,00017 &
B - RZE——F+ZA=+—8®H
RITEBRERNITEE RITERH AN
T

are as follows:

15,200,000 HK$2.39 1 December 2012
to 22 November 2016
15,200,000 2.397% 7T —ET-——F+ZH—H=E
—E—R"Ft+—H=Z+=H

Fair value of share options: ERENAEE

HK$ per share RMB RMB

AT AREETT AR®TT

22 November 2011 15,200,000 0.949 11,775,000 714,000
—2——%F+—A=+=H 15,200,000 0.949 11,775,000 714,000

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2011



The fair value of the Share Options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant by Jones Lang
LaSalle Sallmanns Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model
used:

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

PR BRI 0 2 B - AR B
e EIN S R
ERAFRAAERBEER - W =&
5 1 R 7 K B K TR 4 T 77
izt e TREIIRMAMUBH AR
aH -

Exercise price (HK$ per share) TEE (BRET) 2.39
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHREE (%) 1.54
Expected volatility (%) TEADR R (%) 66.27
Risk-free interest rate (%) mERRFE (%) 0.68
Expected life of share options (years) TEARRE AR AER SE AR (4F) 5

Weighted average share price at grant date % H B Bif hnkE F 15 I4E

(HK$ per share)

The expected life of the Share Options is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility may not
necessarily reflect the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At 31 December 2011, the Company had
outstanding Share Options for the subscription
of 15,200,000 shares under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.1% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at that
date. The exercise in full of the outstanding Share
Options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 15,200,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$1,520,000
(equivalent to RMB1,232,000) and share premium
of HK$34,808,000 (equivalent to RMB28,208,000),
before related issuance expenses.

214

BRENTRRFHARBRA R LNTT
RN IR - AR ERL —ERR

ERLBRENEMRFHBLERAAR
REENER -

R-_TE——F+_-_HA=+—H ' &KXAF
WARITERERE - I RERERERE
T2 T15,200,0008% f% 17 + B E KA A7)
RE BB EBEITRAL.1%  REAA
AR EIRAZRE  2EITERITERE
RE A & BB 21T KA R]15,200,0000% 58
HNEE AR (D - LA & BB SR 21,520,000
BT HBER AR 1,232,0000T ) &
P 17 3% (834,808,000 To( #8 & A A
R #28,208,0007T ) (1 & #8 B & 17
FZAT) °
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During the year ended 31 December 2010,
the controlling shareholder of the Company
contributed plant and machinery of RMB
40,136,000 as capital injection in the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group acquired certain subsidiaries pursuant
to the group reorganisation at an aggregate
consideration of RMB2,571,000 from the
controlling shareholder, Mr. Dong Li, which
was settled through the current account with a
director, Mr. Dong Li.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group acquired certain subsidiaries pursuant to
the Reorganisation at an aggregate consideration
of RMB2,571,000 from the controlling shareholder,
Mr. Dong Li, which was settled through the current
account with a director, Mr. Dong Li.

REBEE-_ZE—ZF+_A=+—HLHF
ER - RAFWERBRRELEARK
40,136,0007CHI R = R S 1E R AN &
ErEE -

REBEE_ZT—ZF+_A=+—HIHF
ER - REEREEESHAMERRE
ETREREETHEAR - BREAR
ARME2,571,000 - ENiER—BE
E(EFRE)NTRELER -

REBEE-_T—TF+-A=1+—ALHF
BR - AEERESEHEAIZERBERES
EERBETHBEAR  BREABAR
#2,5671,0007T - EEB—RESH(E
FRE)NERESER -

KRBE-FT——&+-A=+-ALEE
A BEEAKRSRS -

There was no significant non-cash transactions during
year ended 31 December 2011.
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior year
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
capital contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to
the subsidiaries directly held by Mr. Dong Li before
the group reorganisation on 8 June 2010.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the reserve
fund until such reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. Subject
to certain restrictions set out in the Company
Law of the PRC, part of the reserve fund may
be converted to increase paid-up capital/issued
capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital. The
reserve fund of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to RMB70,979,000 and RMB49,631,000 as at 31
December 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
companies outside the PRC. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2.4.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes
and the share options issued under the
schemes are included in note 31 to the financial
statements.
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AEEAFERBEFENRASER
HEBERENHREOGA S
LELTR

AEENAHEBREARRESRIEK
BRREFAER_Z-ZFXRANBE
ARABEERFAENRBARIEE -

RBEFBRARE  NEBERFTEEEA
AIZA R EE T HB 85 F10%EAEE
PES  EEZRBESREIFHRER
H50%A&1E - FEFBI A RDERT M E T
REFRBT @ AT TES A T AE
BEUEMBRER BBEITRA R
BRI BRI EHBETRREMER
H125% - FEMIBARIMAEER=-Z
— &+ _-_A=+—BR-_ZT—ZTF+
—RA=+—HA253AAR%70,979,000
TR A R#49,631,0007T °

R KB R EEMARRER BN
NEIMEHRRMELNE L Z5E - Zi#
WIRE N 2. 4N S ETBORRRIE -

BRAA R R BT 8 RIRaT 81317
RIB IR IE RS - SRS IRRMITES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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33. Reserves (continued)

(b) Company

33. fitifte )
(b) A~ H

Share Share Proposed
premium  Shareholder’s option  Accumulated final
account  contribution reserve losses dividend Total
RRERE RRAS BEREGE ZiEE  BEAERE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Balance at RZ3-55-H

1 January 2010 —ARER - - - - - -
Total comprehensive ERfzESE

loss for the year Ek e - - - (23,821) - (23,821)
Contribution from a RREEEREALE

shareholder pursuant

to group Reorganization - 337,830 - - - 387,830
Issue of shares Bkl 1,414,063 - - - - 1,414,058
Share issue expenses ROBEOREY (71,756) - - - - (71,756)
Eouity-settled share EGE

option arrangements gz - - 6,830 - - 6,830
At 31 December 2010 \ZT-FF+2R

and 1 January 2011 =t-ARkZE-

—£-H-A 1,342,297 387,830 6,830 (23,821) - 1,608,136
Total comprehensive ERNEEFREE

loss for the year - - - (40,534) - (40,534)
Equity-settled share R EERER

option arrangements (Ft31)

(Note 31) - - 11,546 - - 11,546
Interim dividend RERE (35,953) - - - - (35,953)
Proposed final dividend BEAIRE 21,332) - - - 21,332 -
At 31 December 2011 RZF—%+ZR

=t+-A 1,285,012 387,830 18,376 (64,355) 21,332 1,598,196
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YA 5 o i e
31 December 2011
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34. Pledge Of Assets 34, & E R
31 December 2011 “E-—%+-A=t-H
Prepaid Property, Trade
land lease plant and Pledged and bills
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
ALt k- BE B 5 EE
HER k#EfE  BEAER REWEE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBTR AR¥TT ARBTR
(note 16) (note 15) (note 24) (Note 21)

(HzE16) (FfiEE15) (FizE24) (FEE21)
Interest-bearing bank ~ FEHTEE
borrowings (note 28) (GEZ6) 10,696 292,762 591,377 75,582 970,417
Trade and bills B SR FERER
payables (note 25) & (fizkes) - - 16,608 - 16,608
Deposits for issue FHERENT &
of letters of credit - - 32,506 - 32,506
Total Bt 10,696 292,762 640,491 75,582 1,019,531
31 December 2010 “E-TE+-A=1-H
Prepaid Property, Trade
land lease plant and Pledged and bills
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
BT E T BHRKE
HER & [REECTES A PETES st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREFT

(note 16) (note 15) (note 24) (Note 21)

CiEal) (KtzE15) GEZZY GE#7)

Interest-bearing bank ~ :B2R{TEE

borrowings (note 28) (Fi3k28) 3,421 258,260 1,178 2,455 265,314
Trade and bills B SR ERER

payables (note 25) R (es) 3,087 - 59,063 = 62,150
Deposits for issue BLERENT S

of letters of credit - - 7,070 - 7,070
Total et 6,508 258,260 67,311 2,455 334,534
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The Group leases its staff quarters and office
premises under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from five
to ten years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

Within one year 1FR

In the second to FOFEELF -
fifth years, inclusive BREEREMF

After five years MR5F1£

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and office equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from three to five
years, and those for office equipment are for
terms ranging between two and five years.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group and
the Company had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:
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R_ZB——F+-_A=+—H ~%£H
RIFT A HAEHER T 52 HIRE#
AREEAEEUGRIBRTRNT ¢

2010
_.=|; __i
RMB’000
ARET T

43

123
80

246

AEERBEEHELTHHERAE THA
EMERBAZE -  BAEYENLE
S EEN FIESF - ERXHAZEE
NF2ESF o
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35. Operating Lease Arrangements

(continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

35. &&

N o

31 December 2011

—ET——%+=ZA=+—H

H & 2P )

(b) TEREMA (4

36. Commitments

Group
AEE
2011 2010
—F——fF —E—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Within one year 1FR 5,913 5,607
In the second to fifth FE2FEFEHF
years, inclusive BREEEMT 1,086 8,365
After five years MR5F1& = -
6,999 13,972
A
36. HK 5
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B E S (BI7E35(b)) FFal B 45 & FH S AN -

in note 35(b) above, the Group and the Company had
the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

RBERERE - AEERARFBUATE

ARG

Group
REE
2011 2010
—F——F| —FT-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR®ET T
Contracted, but not BRI BAREE
provided for:
Land and buildings TH REF 74,582 104,486
Plant and machinery 55 5 K 1 25 70,678 41,507
145,260 145,993
Capital contribution FEREE -
payable for:
Investments in Bib & N R A() -
associates (i): 17,712 1,433
Investments in B ARIRE
a subsidiary - 20,000
17,712 21,433
162,972 167,426
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Leoch Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited
agreed to acquire a 40% equity interest in
Leoch Accupower (M) SDN BHD, a company
incorporated in Malaysia, by Leoch Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, and ACCUPRO Sdn Bhd at a consideration
of RMB43,000,000 (i.e., MYR20,000,000) in
accordance with the terms and conditions set
on in an agreement entered into by both parties
on 10 August, 2011. As at 31 December 2011,
RMB13,301,000 has yet to be paid in future.

Leoch Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited
agreed to acquire a 35% equity interest in
Master Electronic Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Hongkong, by Leoch Investment
(Singapore) Pte. Limited, and Ihsan Jamil Nizam,
Jamil Edward Nizam, Sami Edard Nizam, Basel
Hassan Nizam, Rial Insan Nizam, and Amir Jamil
Nizam, at a consideration of RMB4,411,000 (i.e.
US$700,000) in accordance with the terms and
conditions set on in an agreement entered into
by all parties on 26 October, 2011. As at 31
December 2011, the amount had not yet been
paid.
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BRIERGERFR_ZE——FNA+H
51 37 19 &% BT #8916 5k R A& 14 - Leoch
Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited
(AEERKEB R A )R ZE ALeoch
Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited &
ACCUPRO Sdn Bhd#t g — R 5 2K
e =M SZH) A B]Leoch Accupower
(M) SDN BHD 40%&#E - RBER AR
43,000,0007(20,000,0005%70) « A=
E——F+-_A=+—8'  AR¥%
13,301,0007Ci4F B8 2 A+ ©

REXFEFTR_ZE—F+A=-+~X
B 5T 3 15 7% P &0 A 6 51 S 1614 - Leoch
Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited[d
E FLeoch Investment (Singapore) Pte.
LimitedE2lhsan Jamil Nizam * Jamil
Edward Nizam * Sami Edard Nizam
Basel Hassan Nizam  Rial Ihsan
Nizam & Amir Jamil Nizami i — K 7
F B sE A 3L 89 A AlMaster Electronic
Group Limited 35%%# - REAAR
#4,411,00075 (700,000 7T) ° R =
ﬁ——iJr:ﬂEJr—El C RIAR AR
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In addition to the transactions and balances gﬁaﬁﬁiggﬁé%%g%gizég

detailed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group had the following transactions with PATERS
fellow subsidiaries during the year:
2010
—T-TF
RMB’000
AREET T
Purchases from related ERREQTEE (M)
companies (note i)
Dongguan Leoch Power REBTEREMARAA]
Supply Co., Ltd. 76,596
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle R EHEFRAA
Co., Ltd. 6,385
Shenzhen Marshell Green YIS TR EEE AR AR
Power Co., Ltd. 44,851
Shenzhen Marshell Power YT ISP R AL IR
Supply Co., Ltd. F g BRAR] 4,639
Shenzhen Marxon Power YT BRI EIR
Supply Co., Ltd. F g BRAR] 4,503
Guangdong Marshell Electric ERIFAMEE
Vehicle Co., Ltd. R BRAR] -
136,974
Sales to related companies EEE A AHE (M)
(note i)
Dongguan Leoch Power REBLTEREMERAF
Supply Co., Ltd. 25,783
Leoch International BB (FF)
(H.K) Ltd. BRAT 34,193
Shanghai Donmin LR EBHELRRAR
Vehicle Co., Ltd. 6,275
Shanghai Leoch Power BB TERBHY
Supply Co., Ltd. EERARAA 9,349
Shenzhen Marshell Green YRR EBE AR A A
Power Co., Ltd. 18,497
Shenzhen Marshell Power YT R AR
Supply Co., Ltd. HtBRAR] 346
Shenzhen Marxon Power YT BRI ER
Supply Co., Ltd. BT BR A A 12,658
Guangdong Marshell Electric EBRIEEARES
Vehicle Co., Ltd. BB BR AR -
107,101
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(continued)

Lease of office premises
from two related company
and a director

Shenzhen Marshell Power
Supply Co., Ltd. (note ii)

Eastern International LLC
(note iii)

Mr. Dong Li (note iv)

Lease of a manufacturing plant
from a related company
Dongguan Leoch Power
Supply Co., Ltd. (note v)

Cash receipts on behalf of the
Group by related companies
(note vi)

D&P International Research
and Development Corp

Marshell International Inc.

EmMERAEARAR -—RES
HERIEYHE

RT3 7H R BEIIR

g R~ =) (Bt i)
Eastern International LLC
(Bt 5iii)
=54 (Miskiv)

HREARDHEERE

REELTEREM
BRABE ()

BEARNRERAR
SEWERE
GEYD;

D&P International Research
and Development Corp

Marshell International Inc.
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—E-EF
RMB’000
AREETIT

230

2,379
236

2,845

84

17,572
195,205

212,777



(continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The sales of products to and purchases of raw
materials and equipment from related companies
were made at prices mutually agreed between the
parties.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the lease
of two office premises of the Group to Shenzhen
Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd. based on monthly
rentals of RMB55,394 and RMB2,136 respectively
from September 2010.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of office premises of the Group to Eastern
International LLC based on a monthly rental of
US$30,000 from 1 August 2008 to 31 December
2012.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of office premises of the Group to Mr. Dong
Li at an annual rent of RMB72,000 for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2015 and at
an annual rent of SG$39,000 for the period from
10 March 2010 to 10 March 2013.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of a manufacturing plant from Dongguan Leoch
Power Supply Co., Ltd. at annual rental of RMB
168,000. On 30 June 2010, the Group entered into
an agreement with Dongguan Leoch Power Supply
Co., Ltd. to purchase this manufacturing plant at a
future date when the conditions in the agreement are
met. The consideration will be determined based on a
third party valuation report at the future transfer date.
The Group was granted by Dongguan Leoch Power
Supply Co., Ltd. a licence to use the manufacturing
plant at nil consideration between the date of the
agreement and the actual transfer date in future.

The cash receipts on behalf of the Group by
related companies represented settlement of trade
receivables from customers. The directors confirm
that the related parties will not receive cash on
behalf of the Group after the Company’s IPO.

The directors are of the view that all related party
transactions set out above were entered into in
the ordinary course of business of the Group.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

()

(vi)

31 December 2011
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Ti) [ 72 % S 65 o R D B i
45T #0757 FLAR 9 € IO AE AR T -

MR RAEJUA R ST
T T R R A AT BR 2 7L A AL 1 11
T[] 30 2 =5 49 2 S A D L4 BH S
Jo 4 Al A AN ] H55,39400 B N IR
¥2,136I0EHE -

B [ Eastern International LLCFH & 7%
B2 A B 2N 2 W E T S A A A < B
o M SRR NANFEAN] -BE -E -
ZAETZHAZT—H IR H S
30,0003 7C

M EE A HEAREENIAEY
AT B > I F A
—A—HE_F—-HE+_A=+—
H 1k 3 1 09 45 FL & A R #572,0000T -
PR =F—RFE=HTHE_%F—
=AE=H + H LB A 4R 539,000
FOMPETT -

7% S L4 B S T Ak AR A A N R
168,0007C [ 3 5% H + 5 JH & A R
o8 F)V R R T S A o i R — AR
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T A (B 15 T DA 28 o A 4 0 R 5
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F 3 2 o 2 B R 8 3 30 ] e 24X
B F wZ% R % -

B A R ARRA LB 8 EF
TR0 5 E RO - HEAfERY - R
AT E WA B LT AR o B DT R
B RALE BI85

BEERA - EXFAIAEBEALR
FREREEN —REHEE R
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Details of the Group’s balances with its related
parties are disclosed in note 27.

In September 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an agreement ending 31 August
2012 with Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co.,
Ltd., a company which is 100% held by Mr. Dong
Li, the director of the Group, in relation to the
lease of two office premises. The amount of total
lease expenses for 2011 were included in note
37(a) to the financial statements. The Group’s total
lease expenses to be paid to Shenzhen Marshell
Power Supply Co., Ltd in 2012 amounted to
RMB460,240.

In August 2008, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an agreement ending 31 December 2012
with Eastern International LLC , a company which
is 100% held by Mr. Dong Li’s spouse, in relation
to office premises. The amount of total lease
expenses for 2011 were included in note 37(a) to
the financial statements. The Group‘s total lease
expenses to be paid to Eastern International LLC
in 2012 amounted to RMB2,326,788.

In January 2010 and March 2010, a subsidiary of
the Group entered into an agreements ending 31
December 2015 and 10 March 2013, respectively,
with Mr. Dong Li, the director of the Group, in
relation to office premises. The amount of total
lease expenses for 2011 were included in note
37(a) to the financial statements. The Group’s
total lease expenses to be paid to Mr. Dong Li
will be RMB257,098 in 2012 and RMB122,130 in
2013 and RMB72,000 in 2014 and 2015.
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37 Related Party Transactions (continued) 37 %%@ /\j:i 5'/ (%%

(d) Compensation of key management d) AEBFEEHABENMS
personnel of the Group:

2011 2010
—E——fF —B-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Basic salaries and other benefits EARE e R HMEF 4,636 3,621
Performance related bonuses ER R IR B R fEAT 909 586
Equity-settled share option expenses UAMEzS A5 BEAS HEFT 2 3,643 2,113
Retirement benefit scheme BB B
contributions 62 41
9,250 6,361
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EEM SIS E N B REW O o

included in note 9 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of the BIEITTMRANETUASHES » it BER
sales, purchase and lease transactions above also E BENHESSNEETX S INEKY
constitute connected transactions or continuing BB EEL S o

connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the year are as

follows:

Loans and receivables

Long term portion of
trade receivables

Trade and bills receivables

Deposits and other
receivables

Amounts due from
related companies

Pledged deposits

Time deposits with terms
over 3 months

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Equity investments at fair
value through profit
or loss
Held for trading

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Amounts due to related
companies

BEXRREWFE
B S REGRIRN R D

B 5 MR K e IR R
7] & R E A0 IR

& s 833 1) R RRIR

EHERER
HiE =AM EBER

Re LA EEY

N

AABESEFTABENEMEE

AR BEZESFT ARG ZBERE

FANGHE

RESRKAIIENEHMEE
B 5 RNFRARENRE
HoAth F& 508 K e 5T B
AHRIRTTIER

FEfBRE R RIFIR
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SERISBIARFRBNEAENT :

2010
—E-EF
RMB’000
AREET T

11,335
585,140

11,383

4,806
67,311

721,075
178,645

1,480

1,581,175

345,450
65,237

416,629

48,135

875,451



The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, time deposits with terms over 3 months,
current trade receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to
subsidiaries, an amount due to a director and amounts
due to/from related parties approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade
receivables and interest-bearing bank borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank
borrowings, other interest-bearing loans, and cash
and short term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.
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The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, market risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its interest-bearing
bank borrowings. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.
Since the Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings
bear fixed interest and are due within one year, its
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates is low.

The Group’s production process requires a significant
amount of electrolytic lead, Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Styrene plastics (“ABS plastics”), sulphuric acid and
other materials, and the Group’s success depends
significantly on its ability to secure sufficient and
constant supply of principal raw materials for its
production at acceptable price levels. Electrolytic
lead is the most significant raw material used in the
Group’s production. The Group does not have long-
term, fixed-cost supply contracts of raw materials with
its suppliers. Since many of the Group’s sales are
priced by reference to the market price of lead at the
time of a particular order, its exposure to the risk of
changes in price of lead is reduced.
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The Group operates in Hong Kong, the United States,
Singapore and Mainland China. For companies in
Mainland China, their principal activities are transacted
in RMB. For other companies outside of PRC, their
principal activities are transacted in US$. The Group
does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currency as the
directors consider that the Group has no significant
foreign currencies risk exposure.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the other financial assets of the
Group, which comprise cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits, deposits and other receivables and
amounts due from related companies, risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group had concentration of credit
risk with the top five customers which accounted for
42% of the Group’s total trade receivable balances
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 44%). Sales to these
customers accounted for 31% of the Group’s total
sales for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
39%).

31 December 2011
—T——F+=ZA=+—H

AREREL - KB I RPEREL
BEK - RPEAENRARME - WENE
BEBUAARKETRS - i BIRINOE
MABME  WENEBEEBAZTET
X5  HNEERRAKBELESAINER
@ FUEANEB I ERTSLE PR ZIAE
BINETBIERE o

AEBEEREARREBAENTPETR
5o WBAKENBER  PIBRIZEENE
IRZNEP  LALRBBEERERF -
BEoh - REBEFEERERAESRIER
HAREEAERRERILTEAX

RASEAEBSREE(BRRE MRITE
g BEEMER AT REAMMRUGRIRIA KR
ENEERRRIB)FEANEERRM S -
AEEMAENEERRREERXZE IO
EH > sARBREESERELTAMNKEE
8-

AR SGEHFRBZEMUCE  1T¥SH
EREFE mMzANNEERBREAEE
BREZERBRFESEN  EXKEFTEER
%o REERAARTEFPAESETEREER
B AR-_T——F+-A=+—H  BA%
FPHEASEE ZRBGRIEREHRNI2% (ZF
—ZTF 1 44%) cBE_T—F+ A=+
—HIEFE  MZERFEHNHEEELRE
B EBEN3I%(—F—FF : 39%) o

BrEBEMERAR | —T——FFR



Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2011
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39. Financial Risk Management
Objectives And Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is
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as follows:
2011 —E2—-F
Less than 3to 12 1to5
On demand 3 months months years Total
REXE 2PR3EA 3-12(88 1-5% H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%Tx
Interest-bearing bank FEBTER
borrowings - 192,293 552,802 332,307 1,077,402
Trade and bills payables BHRATERENEE - 547,859 - - 547,859
Other payables and accruals EftENFEREFER 10,615 95,844 = - 106,459
Amounts due to related [EfTREE A AR
companies 5,933 - - - 5,933
16,548 835,996 552,802 332,307 1,737,653
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On demand
RMB’000
ARETT
Interest-bearing bank FTERITEE

borrowings _
Trade and bills payables BHRNFERENEE -
Other payables and accruals EftfERFIBREER 7,470

Amounts due to related [E(TEBE R AR A
companies 48,135
55,605

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year ended
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debts divided by total assets. The Group’s total
debts include interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Less than 31012 1tob
3 months months years Total
DR3MEA 3-1218A 1-5% Bat
RMB’'000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
183,128 240,807 - 423,935
345,450 - - 345,450
57,767 - - 65,237
- - - 48,135
586,345 240,807 - 882,757
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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39. Financial Risk Management
ObjCCtiVCS And Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

39. <& el Fg B B H 89 K BUR

(#)

Group

A EE
2011 2010
—E——F| —B-ZfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT

Interest-bearing bank STERITEE

borrowings 1,071,626 416,629
Total debts BIEIR 1,071,626 416,629
Total assets BEE 4,251,551 3,084,075
Gearing ratio BEAMEEE 25.21% 13.51%

40. Approval Of The Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2012,
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilites and B FILERMBRENASERBTRERBERENE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial EXEE - BERFEEREZHEEIIMT -

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below.

2010 2009 2008 2007
—T-ZF  —ETAFE  —TT)N\FE  —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR

RESULTS EL
REVENUE Yezs 2,116,871 1,391,533 1,498,997 1,129,129
Cost of sales HERKA (1,591,254)  (1,102,083) (1,295,102) (979,696)
Gross profit EM 525,617 289,450 203,895 149,433
Other income and gains Hi A\ ez 22,375 20,561 10,160 5,898
Selling and distribution costs $5% & 2 S5 A (76,495) (57,292) (43,660 (34,122)
Administrative expenses THRX (119,261) (70,084) (59,028) (43,404)
Other expenses Hipfx (30,311) (13,220) (15,401) (18,489)
Finance costs IBRA (22,205) (9,614) (8,343) (5,405)
Share of profits and losses ~ E{LHZ A RlE %

of associates - - - _
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PR R 299,720 159,801 87,623 53,911
Tax I (42,210) (14,523) (12,865) (2,281)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  AFE &7 257,510 145,278 74,758 51,630
Owners of the parent SRARIHEEA 257,510 145,273 74,644 50,676
Non-controlling interests ~ FERRR#ER - 5 114 954

257,510 145,278 74,758 51,630
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Five Year Financial Summary

T AP Y 4

Assets, Liabilities And Non-Controlling &z - & & & IF ¥ Bt 45
Interests
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=T—-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E--5 ) ZE-FF ZTTNF ZTIN\F TTLHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETL
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 4,251,551 3,084,075 1,091,192 793,564 655,362
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (1,921,337)|  (1,004,301) (594,028) (437,287) (338,165)
NON-CONTROLLING RS
INTERESTS - = = (1,200) (2,526)
2,330,214 2,079,774 497,164 355,077 314,671
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Innovative And Dependable Battery Supply

. ® BITEHRZINFRADF

: LEOCH INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
L=O ._I Unit 3910, 39/F, Cable TV Tower, No.9 Hoi Shing
Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong
121 55im Tel: +852 3578 6666 Fax: +852 2117 0016

Leoch Battery www.leoch.com
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